
A G E N D A 

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
30 C Street SW – Commission Meeting Room 

Ephrata, Washington 
COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

 
An Executive Session may be called at any time for purposes authorized  

by the Open Public Meetings Act 
 
 

8:30 a.m. Executive Session 
 
9:00 a.m. Commission Convenes 
  Review and Sign Vouchers 
  Calendar Review  
 
9:30 a.m. Reports from staff  
  
12:00 Noon  Lunch   
 
1:00 p.m. Safety Briefing 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Attendance  
 Public requests to discuss agenda items/non-agenda items 
 Correspondence 
 Business Meeting 

 
1. Consent Agenda  

 
Approval of Vouchers 
 
Meeting minutes of March 26, 2024  
 
Special meeting minutes of April 1, 2024 

  
2. Regular Agenda 

 
9048 – Resolution Adopting a Revised Schedule of Non-Bargaining Unit Positions and Superseding 
Resolution No. 8971.   
 
Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to sign Real Estate Purchase 
and Sale Agreement between Grant County, a political subdivision of the State of Washington and 
Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington a municipal corporation for the acquisition 
of certain parcels of land consisting of approximately 34 acres, more or less, and commonly known 
as a portion of Grant County Assessor Parcel No. 16-0866-002 in Sections 22, 23, Township 21, 
Range 26 East, W.M., Grant County, Washington, in the amount of $525,000.00. (3475) For Review 
and Action  
 
 



3. Review Items For Next Business Meeting 
 
Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO to execute Change Order No. 8 to Contract 130-
08756 with North Sky Communications, LLC for Fiber Optic Design and Construction, increasing the 
not-to-exceed contract amount by $9,500,000.00 for a new contract total of $96,500,000.00 and 
resetting the delegated authority levels to the authority granted to the General Manager/CEO per 
Resolution No. 8609 for charges incurred as a result of Change Order No. 8. (xxxx) 

 
Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO to execute Contract 270-12016 with Mercer 
International, Inc. for a total not-to-exceed contract amount of $1,078,345.03. (xxxx) 

 
4. Reports from Staff (if applicable) 

 
Adjournment 





19   
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY 

 
March 26, 2024 

 
The Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington, convened at 8:30 

a.m. at Grant PUD’s Hydro Office Building, 14353 Highway 243 South, Beveryly, Washington and via 
Microsoft Teams Meeting / +1 509-703-5291 Conference ID: 614 157 417# with the following 
Commissioners present: Tom Flint, President; Terry Pyle, Vice-President; Larry Schaapman, Secretary, 
and Nelson Cox, Commissioner.  Judy Wilson was absent due to personal business.   

 
An executive session was announced at 8:30 a.m. to last until 8:55 a.m. to review performance 

of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g), to discuss pending litigation pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(i) and to discuss lease or purchase of real estate if disclosure would increase price pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(1)(b).  The executive session concluded at 8:55 a.m. and the regular session resumed. 

 
The Commission convened to review vouchers and correspondence.   
 
The Commission recessed at 9:11 a.m.  
 
The Commission resumed at 9:30 a.m. 
 
A round table discussion was held regarding the following topics: Commissioner Cox noted 

appreciation from Jeff Whitaker of Tires West for outstanding customer service recently received; recap 
from Commissioner Pyle regarding attendance at JP Morgan Investor Forum and recognition of Grant PUD 
finance staff and Grant’s overall strong financial position; Commissioner Schaapman expressed concerns 
with Friday disconnects and other Ag related issues affected by crews working a four ten schedule; 
request for update on Ag connection requests and schedule; and status update on South Ephrata 
Substation energization date.  

 
New employees, Edgar Renteria, Engineering Technician; and Lucas Peebles, Engineering 

Technician; were introduced to the Commission.   
 

Trade association and committee reports were reviewed.   
 
New employees, Charlie Hoffine, WMC Electrician; and Ryan Amundson, WMC Electrician were 

introduced to the Commission.   
 

Eric Johnson, Senior Safety Coordinator, presented the March Safety Report.   
 
Craig Bressan, Senior Manager of Safety, provided the Safety Health and Improvement Plan 

(SHIP) Programmatic Report.   
 
Chuck Allen, Senior Manager of External Affairs, and Annette Lovitt, Public Affairs Officer, 

reviewed the Public Power / Industry Outreach Activity Report.   
 
The Commission recessed at 11:45 a.m. 
 
The Commission resumed at 12:00 p.m.  

 
An executive session was announced at 12:00 p.m. to last until 12:55 p.m. to review 

performance of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g).  The executive session concluded 
at 12:55 p.m. and the regular session resumed. 

 
Motion was made by Mr. Cox and seconded by Mr. Schaapman excusing the absence of 

Commissioner Wilson.  After consideration, the motion was approved by unanimous vote of the 
Commission. 



20   
 

 
Consent agenda motion was made Mr. Schaapman and seconded by Mr. Cox to approve the 

following consent agenda items: 
 

Payment Number 141133 through 141616 
 

$44,876,917.84                
 

Payroll Direct Deposit 234618 through 235433 
 

$2,557,287.76 
 

Payroll Tax and              
Garnishments 

20240320A 
 

through 20240320B 
 

$1,119,419.09                     
 

 
Meeting minutes of March 12, 2024.   
 
After consideration, the above consent agenda items were approved by unanimous vote of the 

Commission. 
 
The Commissioners reviewed future agenda items.  
 
Commission Pyle reviewed candidates being considered for Washington PUD Association 

Executive Board elected officer positions.  A discussion was held regarding candidate preferences.   
 
The Commission calendar was reviewed.  
 
Thomas Stredwick, Senior Manager of Employee Experience, presented the Employee 
Experience Report.   
 
Chris Roseburg, Senior Manager of Operational Excellence, provided the Operational Services 
Report.   
 
The Commission recessed at 2:23 p.m. 
 
The Commission resumed at 2:30 p.m.   
 
Fallon Long, Managing Director of Integrated Operational Services, presented the Integrated 
Operational Services Report.   
 
An executive session was announced at 3:00 p.m. to last until 4:00 p.m. to discuss lease or 

purchase of real estate if disclosure would increase price with legal counsel present pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(b), to review performance of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g), and to 
discuss pending litigation with legal counsel present pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i).  The executive 
session concluded at 4:00 p.m. and the regular session resumed. 

 
There being no further business to discuss, the March 26, 2024 meeting officially adjourned at 

4:00 p.m.  
 
 

 
 

       
     Tom Flint, President 
      
 
ATTEST: 
            
            
Larry Schaapman, Secretary    Terry Pyle, Vice President 
 
 
 

ABSENT 
            
Judy Wilson, Commissioner     Nelson Cox, Commissioner 



21   
 
 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
OF PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY 

 
April 1, 2024 

 
The Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington, convened at 1:30 

p.m. at Grant PUD’s Main Headquarters Building, 30 C Street SW, Ephrata, Washington, with the 
following Commissioners present:  Tom Flint, President; Terry Pyle, Vice President; Larry Schaapman, 
Secretary; and Nelson Cox, Commissioner.  Judy Wilson was absent due to personal business.   

 
An executive session was announced at 1:30 p.m. to last until 4:30 p.m. with legal counsel 

present to discuss lease or purchase of real estate if disclosure would increase price pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(b).   

 
The Commission recessed at 2:45 p.m. 
 
The executive session resumed at 3:00 p.m. at 35 C Street NW, Room #206, Ephrata, 

Washington with Grant County Commissioners Danny Stone, Cindy Carter and Rob Jones.   
 
The Commission recessed at 3:45 p.m.  
 
The executive session resumed at 4:00 p.m. at Grant PUD’s Main Headquarters Building, 30 C 

Street SW, Ephrata, Washington.  The executive session concluded at 4:30 p.m.  
 
The April 1, 2024 special meeting officially adjourned at 4:30 p.m.  
 

 
 
 

       
     Tom Flint, President 
      
ATTEST: 
         
      
            
Larry Schaapman, Secretary    Terry Pyle, Vice President 
 
 
 
 ABSENT 
            
Judy Wilson, Commissioner     Nelson Cox, Commissioner 
 
 
 





 
RESOLUTION NO. 9048 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A REVISED SCHEDULE OF NON-BARGAINING UNIT POSITIONS 

AND SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 8971 
 

R e c i t a l s 
 

1. Resolution No. 8971 adopted September 14, 2021, increased the Non-Unit Salary Plan by 10%.  
 

2. Pursuant to RCW 54.16.100 the Grant PUD Manager recommends the Commission adopt the scale 
of salaries to be paid for the different classes of service as set forth in the attached Exhibit A.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of 

Grant County, Washington, as follows: 
 

Section 1. The salary plan as set forth in Exhibit A is hereby approved and adopted.  
 
Section 2. The Manager is authorized to make temporary changes in the salary plan of non-bargaining 
unit employees under their direction, until revision of the salary plan by Grant PUD’s Commission, to 
resolve individual situations such as the addition of new job tiles or grade changes for existing job titles. 
All salary adjustments shall have prospective effect only. 
 
 Section 3. Resolution No. 8971 is hereby superseded, and this resolution supersedes any other  
resolutions which are inconsistent with this resolution. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. 8971 is hereby superseded. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 
County, Washington, this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 
      
              
      President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
               
Secretary      Vice President 
 
 
 
 
               
Commissioner     Commissioner 



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

1 16.28 22.87 32.67 Administrative Clerk
1,188.00 1,829.52 2,613.60 Cultural Project Worker

30,888.00 47,567.52 67,953.60 Reservoir Patrol
Student Helper/Student Intern 

2 24.66 34.52 37.98 Accounting Assistant
1,972.96 2,761.44 3,038.64 Cultural Resource Specialist I

51,296.96 71,797.44 79,004.64

3 26.13 36.58 40.24 Administrative Assistant 
2,090.00 2,926.00 3,219.04 HR Coordinator I

54,340.00 76,076.00 83,695.04 Records Compliance Specialist

4 27.68 38.74 42.61 Cultural Resource Specialist II
2,214.08 3,099.36 3,409.12 Internal Communications Specialist I

57,566.08 80,583.36 88,637.12 Lands/Recreation Technician

5 29.36 41.10 45.21 Accounting Specialist
2,348.72 3,287.68 3,616.80 Biologist

61,066.72 85,479.68 94,036.80 Cultural Resource Specialist III
Data Analyst
HR Coordinator II
Security Specialist

6 31.12 43.57 47.93 Associate Engineer Standards
2,489.52 3,485.68 3,834.16 Employee Experience Administrator

64,727.52 90,627.68 99,688.16 Energy Services Specialist I
HR Generalist I
HRIS Analyst I
Procurement Officer I 
Records Officer
Regulatory Specialist I
Training Specialist I

7 33.00 46.20 50.82 Asset Management Coordinator
2,640.00 3,696.00 4,065.60 Business Analyst I

68,640.00 96,096.00 105,705.60 Control System Analyst
Engineer I
Executive Assistant
GIS Analyst
Program Specialist
Safety Coordinator
Technical Writer

8 34.97 48.96 53.86 Accountant
2,797.52 3,916.88 4,308.48 Accounting Systems Analyst

72,735.52 101,838.88 112,020.48 Business Systems Analyst
Change Coordinator I
Communications Specialist
Customer Program Coordinator
Customer Service Program Coordinator
Customer Solutions Systems Analyst
Customer Strategist
Energy Services Specialist II 
Engineering Assistant
HR Generalist II
HRIS Analyst II
Internal Communications Specialist II
Joint Use Specialist
Procurement Officer II
Product Strategist
Project Coordinator
Project Specialist I
Regulatory Specialist II
Security System Administrator  
Senior Data Analyst
Software Test Engineer

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  04/09/2024

Exhibit "A" - Resolution No. 9048



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  04/09/2024

Exhibit "A" - Resolution No. 9048

9 37.07 51.91 57.10 Archaeologist
2,965.60 4,152.72 4,568.08 Business Analyst II

77,105.60 107,970.72 118,770.08 Change Coordinator II
Data Architect
Engineer II
Lands Specialist
IT Infrastructure Engineer
Outside Fiber Plant Specialist
Procurement Officer III
Senior Biologist
Senior Program Specialist
Software Engineer
Training Specialist II

10 39.29 55.01 63.26 Asset Management Specialist
3,143.36 4,400.88 5,060.88 Construction Inspector

81,727.36 114,422.88 131,582.88 Customer Service Supervisor
Customer Solutions Program Supervisor
Desktop Engineer
Employee Experience Specialist
Executive Services Supervisor
Fleet Maintenance Coordinator
HR Generalist III
HR Wellness Specialist
Lead Accounting Systems Analyst
Project Specialist II
Public Affairs Officer 
Regulatory Specialist III
Risk Analyst
Senior Accountant
Senior Business Systems Analyst
Senior GIS Analyst
Senior Internal Controls Specialist
Senior Control Systems Analyst
Supply Chain Analyst
Wanapum Interface Specialist

11 41.62 58.28 67.01 Accounts Payable Supervisor
3,329.92 4,662.24 5,360.96 Apprenticeship & Workforce Development Program Mgr

86,577.92 121,218.24 139,384.96 Engineer III
Financial Analyst
HR Business Partner I
Internal Communications Specialist III
Lead Employee Experience Specialist
Lead Program Specialist
Legal Compliance Specialist
Outside Fiber Plant Coordinator
Payroll Supervisor
Power Production Scheduler
Project Manager
Project Specialist III
Research Economist
Senior Auditor
Senior Emergency Management Coordinator
Senior Lands Specialist
Senior IT Infrastructure Engineer
Senior Safety Coordinator
Senior Software Engineer
Senior Software Test Engineer

12 44.14 61.80 71.06 Accounting Supervisor
3,531.44 4,943.84 5,684.80 Budget & Reporting Specialist

91,817.44 128,539.84 147,804.80 Change Manager I
Construction & Maintenance Specialist
Database Administrator
DCS Control Technician
Engineering Services Supervisor
Executive Business Advisor
Financial Reporting Analyst
HRIS Administrator 
HR Business Partner II
HR Compliance & Risk Analyst
Lands and Permitting Services Supervisor
Lead Biologist
Lead Business Systems Analyst
Lead IT Infrastructure Engineer
License Implementation Supervisor
Power Production Work Week Coordinator
Project Specialist IV
Security Supervisor
Senior Archaeologist
Senior Data Architect
Senior DevOps Engineer
Senior Regulatory Specialist
Senior Training Coordinator
Service Desk Supervisor
Supply Chain Supervisor
Traditional Programs Supervisor
Water Sewer Specialist



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  04/09/2024

Exhibit "A" - Resolution No. 9048

13 46.79 65.51 75.34 Advanced Metering & Billing Specialist
3,743.52 5,240.40 6,027.12 Archaeology Supervisor

97,331.52 136,250.40 156,705.12 Assistant Controller
Change Manager II
Cyber Security Engineer
Debt & Financial Compliance Supervisor
Engineer IV
Engineering Services & Support Supervisor
Enterprise Applications Supervisor
Facilities Supervisor
Fish and Wildlife Supervisor
Fisheries Scientist
Human Resources Supervisor
Manager Emergency Preparedness
Manager Grants Program
Manager Learning & Development
Manager Quality Assurance
Organizational Development Supervisor
Platform Operations Supervisor
Project Specialist V
Senior Asset Management Specialist
Senior Construction Inspector
Senior Customer Strategist
Senior Economist
Senior Financial Analyst
Senior Network Security Engineer
Senior Project Manager
Senior Risk Analyst
Senior Software Test Engineer
Telecommunications Engineer
Wanapum Interface Supervisor

14 49.60 69.44 86.79 Business Development Manager
3,967.92 5,555.44 6,943.20 Controller Accounting

103,165.92 144,441.44 180,523.20 Dispatch Generalist
Economist
Engineer CSE IV
Environmental Services Supervisor
Key Accounts Manager
Large Power Solutions Manager
Manager Continuous Improvement Programs
Manager Corrective Action Program
Manager Fleet Maintenance
Manager Procurement & Warehouse
Project Services Supervisor
Project Specialist VI
Public Affairs Supervisor
Quantitative Analyst
Senior Policy Analyst
Senior Product Strategist
Systems Engineer
Systems & Programming Supervisor
Treasury Operations Supervisor
Term Marketer
Wanapum Liaison

15 52.56 73.59 91.98 Electric Shop Supervisor
4,204.64 5,887.20 7,358.56 Engineer V

109,320.64 153,067.20 191,322.56 Lead Construction Inspector
Lead Financial Analyst
Lead Project Manager
Line Office Supervisor
Maintenance & Construction Supervisor
Manager Asset Management
Manager Budget & Reporting 
Manager Cultural Resources
Manager Distribution Systems
Manager Enterprise Risk Management
Manager Facilities
Manager Org Change Management
Manager Security
Manager Treasury Operations
Operations Technical Advisor
Plant Maintenance Supervisor
Plant Operations Supervisor
Program Manager Rates & Pricing
Project Specialist VII
River Coordinator
Senior Fisheries Scientist
Senior Power Supply Analyst
Senior Term Marketer
System Operator Trainer



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  04/09/2024

Exhibit "A" - Resolution No. 9048

16 55.75 78.05 97.55 Chief Dam Safety Engineer
4,459.84 6,243.60 7,803.84 Grid Optimization Manager

115,955.84 162,333.60 202,899.84 Labor Relations Manager
Lead Economist
Lead Solution Architect
Manager Distribution Systems
Manager Employee Relations
Manager HR Operations
Manager Control System Engineer
Manager Compliance
Manager Engineering
Manager Enterprise Applications
Manager Enterprise Operations
Manager Enterprise Project Portfolio Management
Manager EPMO
Manager Fish & Wildlife
Manager Forecasting Planning & Analysis
Manager License Compliance and Lands Services
Manager Software Engineering
Manager Software Quality Assurance
Manager Telecom Engineering
Manager of Transmission Services
Plant Manager
Project Specialist VIII
Senior Manager Employee Experience
Senior Manager External Affairs
Senior Manager Supply Chain and Procurement
Senior Manager Customer Solutions
Senior Manager Internal Audit
Senior Manager Safety
Senior Quantitative Analyst
Staff Attorney I

17 59.06 82.68 103.36 Manager Dispatch
4,724.72 6,614.08 8,268.48 Project Specialist IX

122,842.72 171,966.08 214,980.48 Senior Manager Accounting
Senior Manager Environmental Affairs
Senior Manager Control System Engineer
Senior Manager Forecasting & Market Analytics
Senior Manager Hydro Generation
Senior Manager Industry & Market Research
Senior Manager Net Power Reporting & Metrics
Senior Manager Operational Excellence
Senior Manager EPMO
Senior Manager Power Delivery Const & Maint
Senior Manager Power Delivery Engineering
Senior Manager Power Production Engineering
Senior Manager Product Development
Senior Manager Treasury & Financial Planning
Senior Manager Wholesale Services

18 75.77 106.08 132.61 Director Power Delivery
6,061.44 8,486.72 10,608.40 Director Power Production

157,597.44 220,654.72 275,818.40 Project Specialist X
Senior Manager Large Power Solutions
Senior Manager Power Portfolio Strategy
Senior Manager Wholesale Fiber
Senior Manager Wholesale Marketing Supply
Staff Attorney II

19 82.73 115.82 154.70 Chief Administrative Officer
6,618.48 9,265.52 12,376.32 Chief Customer Officer

172,080.48 240,903.52 321,784.32 Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Managing Director Energy Supply Management
Managing Director Enterprise Technology
Managing Director Human Resources
Managing Director Integrated Operational Services

 Grade Ranges

Each grade within the non-union salary plan consists of the minimum bi-weekly salary, the market point bi-weekly salary and the maximum bi-weekly salary.  Annual salaries are 
illustrative only.

Green titles denotes changes made to the salary plan throughout the year. The Manager is authorized to make temporary changes in the salary plan of non-bargaining unit employees 
under his direction, until revision of the salary plan by the Grant PUD’s Commission, to resolve individual situations such as the addition of new job titles



MEMORANDUM March 14, 2024

Richard Wallen, General Manager/Chief Executive OfficerTO:

Tod Ayers, Managing Director of Human Resources'FROM:

Updated Non-Bargaining Unit Salary StructureSUBJECT:

Purpose: To request Commission approval of a 10% increase to the Non-Bargaining Unit Salary

Plan.

Discu,s,sjon:.To reflect changes in the labor market, Human Resources routinely submits

recommended updates to the overall Salary Plan. This proposal does not change wages, nor does it

change labor expenses; it increases the potential range of salary for all positions on the Salary Plan

by a fixed percentage. This allows Grant PUD to remain competitive in the labor market, directly

supporting hiring new and retaining existing employees.

To develop a recommended increase. Human Resources conducted research on external market

data and considered the following factors:

● Grant PUD last updated the Non-Bargaining Unit Salary Plan in September 2021. Since

2021, US inflation hit a 40-year high.

● Strategic Pillar #2 is Sustaining our focus on engaged, empowered & enabled employees.

● The 2024 Strategic Plan objective is to design and sustain an engaging and fulfilling Grant

PUD Culture. To meet the objective Grant PUD will recruit, develop, and retain a best-in

class workforce.

Justification:

● The Employer Cost Index (ECl) increased 5.1% in 2022 and increased 4.2% in 2023 for a

total increase of 9.3%.

● The western region Consumer Price Index increased 6.0% in 2022 and 3.6% in 2023 for a

total increase of 9.6%.

● Internal compression is happening in some areas of the organization due to Bargaining Unit

increases in the current Collective Bargaining Agreement:

Apprenticeable CraftGeneral Wage Increase

Bargaining Unit

Year

8.00%8.00%1-Apr-23

5.25%3.00%1-Apr-24

5.25%3.00%1-Apr-25



Financial ConsiderationsiThis will not increase wages; it is simply a proposal to increase the

salary range for each grade by 10%. Labor spending, including annual dollars budgeted for merit

increases are budgeted and approved by the Commission annually.

Recommendation: Commission approval to increase the Non-Bargaining Unit Salary Plan by 10%.



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point    

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title
1 16.28 20.79 29.70 Administrative Clerk

1,188.00 1,663.20 2,376.00 Cultural Project Worker
30,888.00 43,243.20 61,776.00 Lands Recreation Crew

Reservoir Patrol
Student Helper/Student Intern 

2 22.42 31.38 34.53 Accounting Assistant
1,793.60 2,510.40 2,762.40 Cultural Resource Specialist I

46,633.60 65,270.40 71,822.40

3 23.75 33.25 36.58 Administrative Assistant 
1,900.00 2,660.00 2,926.40 HR Coordinator I

49,400.00 69,160.00 76,086.40 Records Compliance Specialist 

4 25.16 35.22 38.74 Cultural Resource Specialist II
2,012.80 2,817.60 3,099.20 Internal Communications Specialist I

52,332.80 73,257.60 80,579.20 Lands/Recreation Technician

5 26.69 37.36 41.10 Accounting Specialist
2,135.20 2,988.80 3,288.00 Biologist 

55,515.20 77,708.80 85,488.00 Cultural Resource Specialist III
Data Analyst 
HR Coordinator II
Security Specialist 

6 28.29 39.61 43.57 Associate Engineer Standards
2,263.20 3,168.80 3,485.60 Employee Experience Administrator

58,843.20 82,388.80 90,625.60 Energy Services Specialist I 
HR Generalist I
HRIS Analyst I
Procurement Officer I 
Records Officer
Regulatory Specialist I
Training Specialist I

7 30.00 42.00 46.20 Asset Management Coordinator
2,400.00 3,360.00 3,696.00 Business Analyst I

62,400.00 87,360.00 96,096.00 Control System Analyst
Engineer I
Executive Assistant
GIS Analyst
Program Specialist
Safety Coordinator
Technical Writer

8 31.79 44.51 48.96 Accountant
2,543.20 3,560.80 3,916.80 Accounting Systems Analyst

66,123.20 92,580.80 101,836.80 Business Systems Analyst
Change Coordinator I
Communications Specialist
Customer Program Coordinator
Customer Service Program Coordinator 
Customer Solutions Systems Analyst
Customer Strategist
Employee Experience Specialist
Energy Services Specialist II 
Engineering Assistant
HR Generalist II
HRIS Analyst II
Internal Communications Specialist II
Joint Use Specialist
Procurement Officer II
Product Strategist
Project Coordinator
Project Specialist I 
Regulatory Specialist II
Security System Administrator  
Senior Data Analyst
Software Test Engineer

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  09/14/2021

Exhibit "A" - Resolution 8971
Revised:  3/12/2024



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point    

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  09/14/2021

Exhibit "A" - Resolution 8971
Revised:  3/12/2024

9 33.70 47.19 51.91 Archaeologist
2,696.00 3,775.20 4,152.80 Business Analyst II            

70,096.00 98,155.20 107,972.80 Change Coordinator II
Data Architect
Engineer II
Executive Services Coordinator
Executive Services Supervisor
Lands Specialist
Network Analyst
IT Infrastructure Engineer
Outside Fiber Plant Specialist
Procurement Officer III
Senior Biologist
Senior Program Specialist
Software Engineer
Training Specialist II

10 35.72 50.01 57.51 Accounts Payable Supervisor
2,857.60 4,000.80 4,600.80 Asset Management Specialist

74,297.60 104,020.80 119,620.80 Business Analyst Supervisor
Class & Compensation Specialist
Construction Inspector
Customer Service Supervisor
Customer Solutions Program Supervisor
Desktop Engineer
Employee Experience Specialist
Executive Services Supervisor
Fleet Maintenance Coordinator
HR Generalist III
HR Wellness Specialist
Lead Accounting Systems Analyst
Project Specialist II 
Public Affairs Officer 
Regulatory Specialist III
Risk Analyst 
Senior Accountant
Senior Business Systems Analyst
Senior GIS Analyst
Senior Internal Controls Specialist
Senior Software Test Engineer
Senior Control Systems Analyst
Supply Chain Analyst
Wanapum Interface Specialist

11 37.84 52.98 60.92 Accounts Payable Supervisor
3,027.20 4,238.40 4,873.60 Apprenticeship & Workforce Development Program Mgr

78,707.20 110,198.40 126,713.60 Engineer III
Financial Analyst
HR Business Partner I
Internal Communications Specialist III
Lead Employee Experience Specialist
Lead Program Specialist
Legal Compliance Specialist
Outside Fiber Plant Coordinator
Payroll Supervisor
Power Production Scheduler
Project Manager
Project Specialist III 
Research Economist
Senior Auditor
Senior Emergency Management Coordinator
Senior Lands Specialist
Senior Network Analyst
Senior IT Infrastructure Engineer
Senior Safety Coordinator 
Senior Software Engineer
Senior Software Test Engineer

12 40.13 56.18 64.60
3,210.40 4,494.40 5,168.00 Accounting Supervisor

83,470.40 116,854.40 134,368.00 Budget & Reporting Specialist
Change Manager I
Construction & Maintenance Specialist
Database Administrator 
DCS Control Technician
Engineering Services Supervisor
Executive Business Advisor*
Financial Reporting Analyst
HRIS Administrator 
HR Business Partner II
HR Compliance & Risk Analyst
Lands and Permitting Services Supervisor*
Lead Biologist
Lead Business Systems Analyst
Lead IT Infrastructure Engineer
License Implementation Supervisor*
Parks & Recreation Supervisor *
Power Production Work Week Coordinator
Property Services Supervisor *
Project Specialist IV
Security Supervisor
Senior Archaeologist
Senior Data Architect
Senior DevOps Engineer
Senior Regulatory Specialist
Senior Training Coordinator
Service Desk Supervisor
Supply Chain Supervisor
Supply Chain-Logistics Supervisor
Traditional Programs Supervisor
Water Sewer Specialist



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point    

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  09/14/2021

Exhibit "A" - Resolution 8971
Revised:  3/12/2024

13 42.54 59.55 68.49 Advanced Metering & Billing Specialist
3,403.20 4,764.00 5,479.20 Archaeology Supervisor

88,483.20 123,864.00 142,459.20 Assistant Controller
Change Manager II
Cyber Security Engineer
Debt & Financial Compliance Supervisor
Engineer IV
Engineering Services & Support Supervisor
Enterprise Applications Supervisor
Facilities Supervisor
Fish and Wildlife Supervisor
Fisheries Scientist
Human Resources Supervisor
Manager Emergency Preparedness
Manager Grants Program
Manager Learning & Development
Manager Quality Assurance
Organizational Development Supervisor
Platform Operations Supervisor
Project Specialist V
Senior Asset Management Specialist
Senior Construction Inspector
Senior Customer Strategist
Senior Economist
Senior Financial Analyst
Senior Network Security Engineer
Senior Project Manager
Senior Risk Analyst
Senior Software Test Engineer
Telecommunications Engineer
Wanapum Interface Supervisor

14 45.09 63.13 78.90 Business Development Manager
 3,607.20 5,050.40 6,312.00 Controller Accounting

93,787.20 131,310.40 164,112.00 Dispatch Generalist
Distribution Systems Supervisor
Economist
Engineer CSE IV
Environmental Services Supervisor
Key Accounts Manager
Large Power Solutions Manager
Manager Continuous Improvement Programs
Manager Corrective Action Program
Manager Fleet Maintenance
Manager Internal Audit
Manager Procurement & Warehouse
Project Services Supervisor
Project Specialist VI 
Public Affairs Supervisor
Quantitative Analyst
Reliability Compliance Internal Auditor
Senior Policy Analyst
Senior Product Strategist
Systems Engineer
Systems & Programming Supervisor
Treasury Operations Supervisor
Term Marketer
Wanapum Liaison

15 47.78 66.90 83.62 Electric Shop Supervisor
3,822.40 5,352.00 6,689.60 Engineer V

99,382.40 139,152.00 173,929.60 Lead Construction Inspector 
Lead Financial Analyst
Lead Project Manager
Line Office Supervisor
Maintenance & Construction Supervisor
Manager Asset Management 
Manager Budget & Reporting 
Manager Cultural Resources
Manager Distribution Systems 
Manager Enterprise Risk Management
Manager Facilities
Manager IT
Manager Lands & Recreation
Manager License & Environmental Compliance
Manager Org Change Management
Manager Security
Manager Treasury Operations
Operations Technical Advisor
Plant Maintenance Supervisor 
Plant Operations Supervisor
Program Manager Rates & Pricing
Project Specialist VII 
River Coordinator
Senior Fisheries Scientist 
Senior Power Supply Analyst
Senior Term Marketer
System Operator Trainer



Grade
 Minimum    Bi-

Weekly
Market Point    

Bi-Weekly
Maximum      
Bi-Weekly

Level Annualized Annualized Annualized Job Title

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT No. 2 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARY PLAN 
Effective:  09/14/2021

Exhibit "A" - Resolution 8971
Revised:  3/12/2024

16 50.68 70.95 88.68 Chief Dam Safety Engineer
4,054.40 5,676.00 7,094.40 Manager Distribution Systems

105,414.40 147,576.00 184,454.40 Manager Employee Relations
Grid Optimization Manager
Manager HR Operations
Labor Relations Manager
Lead Economist
Lead Solution Architect
Manager License Compliance and Lands Services
Manager AMO & Budgeting
Manager Control System Engineer
Manager Compliance
Manager Engineering
Manager Enterprise Applications
Manager Enterprise Operations
Manager Enterprise Project Portfolio Management
Manager Enterprise Risk Management
Manager EPMO
Manager Fish & Wildlife
Manager Forecasting Planning & Analysis
Manager PMO
Manager Software Engineering
Manager Software Quality Assurance
Manager Telecom Engineering
Manager of Transmission Services
Plant Manager
Project Specialist VIII 
Senior Manager Employee Experience
Senior Manager External Affairs
Senior Manager Supply Chain and Procurement
Senior Manager Customer Solutions
Senior Manager Internal Audit*
Senior Manager Safety
Senior Quantitative Analyst 
Staff Attorney I

17 53.69 75.16 93.96 Manager Dispatch
4,295.20 6,012.80 7,516.80 Manager Human Resources

111,675.20 156,332.80 195,436.80 Plant Manager
Project Specialist IX 
Senior Manager Accounting
Senior Manager Environmental Affairs
Senior Manager Control System Engineer
Senior Manager Forecasting & Market Analytics
Senior Manager Human Resources
Senior Manager Hydro Generation
Senior Manager Internal Services
Senior Manager Industry & Market Research
Senior Manager Net Power Reporting & Metrics
Senior Manager Operational Excellence
Senior Manager PMO
Senior Manager EPMO*
Senior Manager Power Delivery Const & Maint
Senior Manager Power Delivery Engineering
Senior Manager Power Production Engineering
Senior Manager Product Development
Senior Manager Treasury & Financial Planning
Senior Manager Wholesale Services

18 68.88 96.44 120.55
5,510.40 7,715.20 9,644.00

143,270.40 200,595.20 250,744.00 Managing Director Power Delivery
Managing Director Power Production
Director Power Delivery
Director Power Production
Project Specialist X
Senior Manager External Affairs & Communications
Senior Manager Employee Experience
Senior Manager Enterprise Technology
Senior Manager Forecasting Planning Analysis
Senior Manager Large Power Solutions
Senior Manager Leadership & Org Development
Senior Manager Power Portfolio Strategy
Senior Manager Rates & Pricing
Senior Manager of Human Resources
Senior Manager Treasury
Senior Manager Wholesale Fiber
Senior Manager Wholesale Marketing Supply
Staff Attorney II

19 75.21 105.29 140.64 Assistant General Manager
6,016.80 8,423.20 11,251.20 Chief Administrative Officer

156,436.80 219,003.20 292,531.20 Chief Customer Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Technology Officer
Managing Director Energy Supply Management
Managing Director Enterprise Technology
Managing Director Human Resources
Managing Director Intentional Power Demand
Managing Director Integrated Operational Services

 Grade Ranges

Each grade within the non-union salary plan consists of the minimum bi-weekly salary, the market point bi-weekly salary and the maximum bi-weekly salary.  Annual salaries are illustrative only.

To ensure that salaries compare equitably with both market data and the responsibilities of other positions within a grade level, the Compensation & Benefits Oversight Committee has the 
authority to set salaries above the market point within a grade, but shall not exceed the salary range maximum assigned to the grade.

The reasons and terms and conditions of pay above the market point of the respective grade must be defined prior to the increase and reviewed and approved by the Compensation & Benefits 
Oversight Committee.

Green titles denotes changes made to the salary plan throughout the year. The Manager is authorized to make temporary changes in the salary plan of non-bargaining unit employees under his 
direction, until revision of the salary plan by the Grant PUD’s Commission, to resolve individual situations such as the addition of new job titles



FOR REVIEW AND ACTION  
 

 
 
 
 

Motion was made by ____________ and seconded by ____________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to sign Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement between Grant 
County, a political subdivision of the State of Washington and Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 
County, Washington a municipal corporation for the acquisition of certain parcels of land consisting of 
approximately 34 acres, more or less, and commonly known as a portion of Grant County Assessor 
Parcel No. 16-0866-002 in Sections 22, 23, Township 21, Range 26 East, W.M., Grant County, 
Washington, in the amount of $525,000.00.   
 
 
 
 
 
3475 



M E M O R A N D U M         April 3, 2024 
 
 
TO:  Richard Wallen, General Manager/Chief Executive Officer 
 
VIA:  Fallon Long, Managing Director of Integrated Operational Services (IOS) 
 
FROM:  Rhiannon Fronsman, Project Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Real Property Acquisition to support future Service Center Construction  
 
Purpose:   
 
To request Commission approval to execute Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
between GRANT COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington and PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON a municipal corporation for the acquisition of certain parcels of 
land consisting of approximately 34 acres, more or less, and commonly known as a portion of Grant 
County Assessor Parcel No. 16-0866-002 in Sections 22, 23, Township 21, Range 26 East, W.M., Grant 
County, Washington.  
 
Discussion:   
 
After years of intensive planning and analysis of Grant PUD’s future needs and evaluation of certain 
existing facilities, Grant PUD’s Facilities Master Plan effort was completed in 2022. The Master Plan 
identifies Grant PUD’s need to construct new service centers and a headquarters to meet long-term 
commitments (30 years and beyond) to provide excellent and reliable service, access, and efficiencies to 
our customers.  
 
Implementation of the Facilities Master Plan will begin with a new Ephrata Service Center. Purchase of 
undeveloped real property is critical to design and construction of the new facility. County growth and 
demand for Grant PUD services are increasing and the existing Ephrata Service Center facility is 
inadequate to keep up with current and long-term service demands. Constructing a new, innovative, and 
more efficient facility is a more cost-effective and functional approach compared to improving the existing 
facility. By investing in a new facility Grant PUD can address current challenges and create an environment 
for future Grant PUD and customer growth opportunities.  
 
Justification:   
 
Purchase of real property will allow Grant PUD to construct the new Ephrata Service Center as planned to 
meet long term customer needs and allow Grant PUD to continue safely, efficiently, and reliably providing 
electric power and fiber optic broadband services to our customers. The new Service Center will correct 
deficiencies and non-compliance, as well as create a building that meets Grant PUD’s safety and reliability 
standards and capitalizes on resiliency opportunities. The new Ephrata Service Center will co-locate 
currently dispersed departments that collaborate closely to perform work and allow space for future 
department growth. Crews will have adequate space to meet, receive and provide training to better and 
safely provide service to customers, and properly store tools and equipment to protect Grant PUD assets.  
 
 



If request to execute the Agreement is not approved, Grant PUD will be unable to continue planned design 
and construction actions. Grant PUD will continue to incur significant costs to continue operating from 
the aging Ephrata Service Center. Many components at the service center are outdated and reaching the 
end of their usable lifecycle, there is a backlog of deferred maintenance items, and there are building 
system failures occurring on a regular basis. As services to our customers continue to expand, additional 
leased space may be required to house employees and assets.  
 
Several other property options varying in acreage size and location were considered and explored for the 
new Ephrata Service Center location.  Properties were evaluated on potential infrastructure costs, size, 
land use, and constraints. Ultimately, acquiring this property from Grant County is in the best interest of 
Grant PUD customers and employees and all Grant County residents.   
 
 
Financial Considerations:   
 
This property is being purchased at the fair market value of the desired acreage.  Other savings will be 
realized by partnering with Grant County and other entities to share costs associated with road, utilities, 
or other improvements that will benefit current future Ephrata development.  
 
The new Ephrata Service Center project was evaluated and considered for financial approval in August 
2022. $6.04M capital budget was approved to fund project initiation and planning. Adequate budget is 
available to purchase this property from Grant County. 
 
 
Contract Specifics:   
 
See attached Letter of Intent and Purchase and Sale Agreement. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Commission approval to execute Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) between 
GRANT COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington and PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF 
GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON a municipal corporation for the acquisition of certain parcels of land 
consisting of approximately 34 acres, more or less, and commonly known as a portion of Grant County 
Assessor Parcel No. 16-0866-002 in Sections 22, 23, Township 21, Range 26 East, W.M., Grant County, 
Washington.  

 
Legal Review:   
 
See attached e-mail(s). 



     
                                                

ADDRESS    PO Box 878 PHONE    509 766 2505  grantpud.org  
                 Ephrata, WA  98823 FAX    509 754 6770 

Powering Our Way of Life.

 
April 2, 2024 
 
Grant County Board of Commissioners 
35 C Street NW 
Ephrata, WA 98823 
 
Dear Grant County Board of Commissioners, 
 
This letter of intent is written in conjunction with the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement 

between and Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, 
Washington  to formally outline intention to cooperate with Seller in reaching 
future consensus related to cost sharing opportunities not included in the Agreement.  
 
Prior to execution of the Agreement with Buyer, Seller agreed to assume responsibility to finance, 
design, and construct roundabout improvements at the intersection of Nat Washington Way and 
SR 282W. Buyer intends to negotiate in good faith with Seller a cost reimbursement associated 
with B    
 
Further, Buyer understands a latecomer agreement may be established by the City of Ephrata 
seeking to recover a portion of the costs associated with City utility improvement for South 
Ephrata area. Buyer d 
improvements in the vicinity. 
 
Finally, Seller and Buyer will work to identify opportunities for potential shared costs associated 
with new electrical power service sought by Seller, with the intent that both Buyer and Seller will 
contribute to costs in proportion to the benefit each party receives from the facilities to provide 
the new electrical power service.  
  
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Richard Wallen 
General Manager / Chief Executive Officer 
Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington 
 
  
 
 



 

1 

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 

 This Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) is dated April ___, 2024, 

and is entered into by and between GRANT COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of 

Washington  (“Seller”) and PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.2 OF GRANT COUNTY,  

WASHINGTON a municipal corporation (“Buyer”). 

 

 Seller wishes to sell and Buyer wishes to purchase the Property, as defined below, upon the 

following terms and conditions: 

 

1. The Property.   

 

(a) The property to be purchased by Buyer (the “Property”) shall consist of 

(i) that certain parcels of land consisting of approximately 34 acres, more or less, and commonly 

known as a portion of Grant County Assessor Parcel No. 16-0866-002 in Sections 22, 23, 

Township 21, Range 26 East, W.M., Grant County, Washington the  approximate location of 

which is attached on Exhibit A hereto; and (ii) all improvements thereon (the “Project”); and 

(iii) all personal property owned by Seller located at said real property, as set forth on the 

inventory to be furnished by Seller to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement; and (iv) all shrubs, 

trees, and plants thereon; and (v) all oil, gas, water and mineral rights and shares of stock 

pertaining to water or mineral rights, whether or not appurtenant thereto, owned by Seller; and 

(vi) all easements, rights of way, and other rights appurtenant thereto; and (vii) all permits and 

contract rights relating to the operation of the Property.  If the exact boundaries and acreage of 

the Property is not known as of the date of mutual execution hereof, Buyer and Seller shall 

mutually agree on same during the period described in Section 7(a) below.  If the Property does 

not constitute a separate, legal, buildable lot which has been segregated for property tax 

purposes, Seller shall accomplish all actions necessary to render the Property in such condition 

on or before the expiration of the period described in Section 7(a) below. 

 

(b) The Property shall be conveyed subject to that certain Memorandum of 

Agreement recorded on November 17, 2021, under Grant County Auditor’s Recording No. 

1461422 and the Grant County/Ibarra Agreement for Termination of Easements attached thereto 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Memorandum”) providing for the termination of two 

easements (the “Existing Access Easements”) across the Property upon Seller’s construction of a 

county road accessing Grant County Assessor’s Tax Parcel No.  16086601 (the “Ibarra 

Property”).  Notwithstanding the conveyance of the Property contemplated in this Agreement: (i) 

Seller shall retain the obligation, at Seller’s sole cost and expense, to construct the county road 

along the southern boundary of Parcel Nos. 16086603 and 160866002 from Road B.3 NW to the 

southwest corner of the Ibarra Property (the “County Road) as described in the Memorandum 

and, thereby, satisfy the conditions for the termination of the Existing Access Easements; (ii) 

Seller shall reserve a right-of-way over and across the Property in the location of and for the 

County Road; and (iii) until such time the County Road is constructed and the Existing Access 

Easements are terminated, Buyer shall not interfere with or obstruct the Existing Access 

Easements.  The covenants, representations, reservations and obligation described in this 

paragraph shall survive the Closing and the delivery and recording of the general warranty deed 

contemplated in this Agreement.   



 

2 

2. Closing.  “Closing” shall mean the date on which the general warranty deed with 

full warranties of title transferring title to the Property from Seller to Buyer is recorded in the 

official records of the County in which the Property is situated.  Closing shall occur on or before 

the date which is thirty (30) days after Buyer’s waiver of all of the contingencies set forth in 

Sections 7 below, or such other date as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties, at the offices 

of Stewart Title Company (the “Escrow Agent”) located in Ephrata, Washington.  If Closing has 

not occurred prior to the date that is one hundred twenty (120) days after mutual execution 

hereof (the “Outside Date for Closing”) for any reason other than a default by Buyer or Seller 

hereunder, then this Agreement shall automatically terminate, and the parties shall have no 

further liabilities or obligations toward each other under this Agreement. 

 

3. Consideration.  The consideration to be paid to Seller by Buyer for purchase of 

the Property (the “Purchase Price”) shall be a total of Five Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand 

Dollars ($525,000) and shall be payable all in cash at Closing. 

 

4. Title. 

 

(a) Preliminary Title Report.  Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense, obtain a preliminary title report 

applicable to the Property (the “Preliminary Title Report”) issued by Stewart Title Company (the 

“Title Company”), together with a copy of all items indicated as exceptions in such Preliminary 

Title Report. 

 

(b) Condition of Title.  At Closing, Seller shall convey fee simple title to the Property to Buyer 

by general warranty deed, subject only to the items indicated on the Preliminary Title Report 

which have been approved by Buyer. 

 

(c) Evidence of Title.  Seller shall, at Seller’s expense, provide Buyer with evidence of Buyer’s 

title to the Property in the form of an owner’s ALTA standard coverage policy of title insurance, 

Form B 1970 (revised 10/17/70), issued by the Title Company containing only those exceptions 

approved by Buyer with a liability limit equal to the Purchase Price.  Seller also agrees to provide 

affidavits and indemnities in standard form required by the Title Company to remove from the title 

policy to be issued at Closing the standard preprinted exceptions for unrecorded leases and 

mechanics liens.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller shall remove at or before 

Closing, and the Permitted Exceptions shall not include, any financial encumbrances or monetary 

liens encumbering the Property (except to the extent caused by Buyer). 

 

5. Delivery for Approval.  Within ten (10) working days of the execution of this 

Agreement, Seller shall deliver to Buyer for Buyer’s approval as to form and content, the 

following: 

 

(a) An inventory of all personal property (if any) to be transferred to Buyer. 

 

(b) Copies of all maintenance, service and other agreements affecting the Property.    

    

(c) Copies of all construction and equipment warranties affecting the Property. 

 



 

3 

(d) All plans, specifications, surveys, soils reports and calculations related thereto and appraisals 

of the Property, environmental and hazardous waste reports and studies relating to the Property, 

and any other reports or studies relating to the physical condition of the Property or adjacent 

properties prepared prior to the date of this Agreement in the possession or subject to the control 

of Seller. 

 

(e) All certificates of occupancy, building permits, architect’s statements of completion and 

similar documents in possession or subject to the control of Seller evidencing appropriate 

regulatory approval of the completion of construction of improvements at the Property. 

 

(f) To the extent the Property or this transaction is subject to natural hazard disclosure 

requirements or requires a transfer disclosure statement pursuant to applicable law, a disclosure 

statement in conformity with the provisions of applicable law for such disclosures. 

 

6. Costs to Buyer and Seller; Closing Documents. 

 

(a) Seller shall pay the following: 

 

(i) Cost of  the policy of title insurance, and all endorsements thereto, as called for in 

Section 4 hereof; 

(ii) One-half of the escrow fee and document preparation; 

 

(iii) Any broker’s commissions; 

 

(iv) Real estate transfer taxes; and 

 

(v) Costs of Seller’s counsel. 

 

(b) Buyer shall pay one-half of the escrow fee and document preparation, cost of the preliminary 

title report, the costs of Buyer’s counsel and any costs or fees for recording the general warranty 

deed. 

 

(c) Real estate taxes and assessments, rents, water, and other utilities shall be prorated as of 

Closing. 

 

(d) At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Escrow Agent the general warranty deed and a warranty 

bill of sale conveying to Buyer the personal property; and  

 

(e) At Closing, Buyer shall pay the Purchase Price and shall execute such other documents 

reasonably required to close the transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

(f) Negotiated Items and Costs to Seller and Buyer: 

 

(i) Seller shall pay, contract, and inspect for the construction of the new 26-foot-wide County 

Road to be built from B.3-NW heading east to the eastern property boundary of Grant County 

parcel No. 16-0866-002. Seller is responsible for construction of road subgrade, basecourse, and 



 

4 

finished top course aggregates, to include all fills/cuts, earthwork, grade staking and density 

tests required and all other necessary and required means for completion of new County Road 

per Grant County Road Standards, these representations shall be true as of the Closing and shall 

survive the Closing; and 

 

(ii) Seller shall be responsible for the construction and upgrading of County Road B.3-NW to 

City of Ephrata Road Standards, these representations shall be true as of the Closing and shall 

survive the Closing.  

(iii) Buyer shall be responsible for transportation and utility improvements as required by the 

City of Ephrata beyond what the County was responsible for as part of its annexation agreement 

with the City. 

7. Conditions Precedent to Buyer’s Obligation. 

 

(a) Buyer’s obligation to perform under this Agreement is subject to and contingent upon 

Buyer’s approval or determination in its sole discretion of the following, all to occur within 

ninety (90) days after the date of mutual execution hereof: 

 

(i) Title Condition.  Buyer’s review and approval of the Preliminary Title Report, together with 

 all exceptions listed therein. 

 

(ii) Documents.  Buyer’s review and approval of all items required to be delivered to Buyer  

pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement. 

 

(iii) Board of Commission Approval.  Receipt of approval from Buyer’s Board of Commissioners  

of all business terms of this Agreement by adoption of a resolution providing for the same. 

 

(iv) Fair Market Value.  Buyers receipt of an appraisal prepared by  

Pacific Appraisal Associates, to determine the fair market value of the property meets or 

exceeds the purchase price.  

   

(v) Regulatory Approval.  Receipt of approval from all applicable regulatory authorities of 

Buyer’s purchase of the Property and of any related opening, closing or relocating of Buyer’s   

facilities. 

 

(vi) Survey. Buyers receipt of a Record of Survey conducted by Western Pacific Engineering, to 

set property pins, prepare and verify legal description and record the Record of Survey with 

the Grant County Auditors office.  Record of Survey to be paid by Buyer.     

 

(vii) Inspection of the Property.  Buyer’s written approval of the Property, including zoning, land  

use, cultural resources, soils, geotechnical, and environmental condition of the Property and 

adjacent parcels, pursuant to physical inspection by Buyer or by whomsoever Buyer may 

designate, which approval may be withheld in Buyer’s sole and absolute discretion.  No 

inference that Buyer has waived any right to rely on warranties of Seller as set forth in Section 8 

of this Agreement shall be drawn from Buyer’s approval of the Property pursuant to such 

physical inspection. 



 

5 

Unless otherwise stated by Buyer in writing, failure to timely approve or disapprove any of the 

above-referenced matters shall constitute disapproval. 

 

(viii) Buyer’s obligation to take title to the Property and pay the Purchase Price at Closing is 

subject to and contingent upon receipt, on or before the Outside Date for Closing, of all 

necessary governmental, nongovernmental, and utility company approvals and permits for 

Buyer’s proposed use and development of the Property, including any necessary land use,  

zoning approvals, comprehensive plan amendments, annexation agreements and platting 

requirements, and utility service approvals for water, sewer, etc., consistent with Buyer service 

requirements.,  Unless otherwise stated by Buyer in writing, failure to timely approve or 

disapprove the matters set forth in this Section 7or before the Outside Date for Closing shall 

constitute disapproval.  Seller shall reasonably cooperate with Buyer to enable Buyer to obtain 

all such permits and approvals for development of the Property as Buyer may desire. 

 

8. Warranty of Title.  Seller is the lawful owner of the Property, and has the full right, 

power, and authority to sell, transfer and convey the Property to Buyer and warrants that the 

Property is not subject to any liens, claims, security interests, encumbrances, taxes, or assessments, 

however described or denominated. 

 

 Seller hereby agrees to defend, protect, indemnify, and hold Buyer harmless from any and 

all loss, damage, liability or expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, Buyer may suffer as a 

result of any breach of or any inaccuracy of the foregoing warranty.  This  warranty shall survive 

Closing. 

 

 Buyer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and all loss or injury 

arising as a result of the Buyer’s inspection of Property.  

 

9. Possession.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Buyer, through its authorized 

agents, personnel and employees, shall be entitled to enter upon the Property during normal 

business hours to make such inspections or studies as Buyer may deem reasonably necessary, 

including without limitation soils and hazardous waste studies.  Full possession of the Property 

shall be delivered to Buyer by Seller at Closing.  Seller shall furnish to Buyer all information that 

Buyer may reasonably request.  If this transaction fails to close, Buyer shall restore the Property 

at its sole cost to substantially the same condition as when Buyer commenced its studies and 

tests. If upon full possession of the property, the Buyer chooses not to develop the property then 

the Seller has right of first refusal to purchase property back from Buyer at the price of which it 

was acquired within two years of closing or appraised value after the two years; except that the 

property shall not be sold back to the Seller for less than Buyer purchase price.   

 



 

6 

10. Seller’s Remedy.  Following waiver of all of Buyer’s contingencies set forth in 

Sections 7(a), 7(b) and 7(c) above, if this transaction fails to close due to a breach by Buyer 

hereunder, the sole and exclusive remedy available to Seller as a result of such breach shall be to 

terminate this Agreement, whereupon Buyer shall deliver to Seller, at no cost to Seller, copies of 

any reports, studies, or tests performed by Buyer or its agents in connection with this transaction 

(excluding financial feasibility studies or other proprietary information).  Seller hereby waives 

any other remedy it may have. 

 

11. Buyer’s Remedies.  If this transaction fails to close due to a breach by Seller 

hereunder, the sole and exclusive remedy available to Buyer as a result of such breach shall be to 

terminate this Agreement, whereupon Seller shall deliver to Buyer, at no cost to Buyer, copies of 

any reports, studies, or tests performed by Seller or its agents in connection with this transaction 

(excluding financial feasibility studies or other proprietary information). Buyer hereby waives 

any other remedy it may have. 

 

12. Miscellaneous. 

 

(a) All notices, consents and approvals required by this Agreement shall be either: 

 

(i) personally delivered; or 

 

(ii) placed in the United States mail, properly addressed and with full first-class postage 

(ii) certified mail with a return receipt.  Said notices, consents and approvals shall be deemed 

received on the earlier of the date actually received, or forty-eight (48) hours after being 

mailed as aforesaid. 

 

 Said notices, consents and approvals shall be sent to the parties hereto at the following 

addresses, unless otherwise notified in writing: 

 

To Seller:  Grant County 

   PO Box 37 

   Ephrata, WA 98823 

    

To Buyer:  Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, WA. 

   Lands and Permitting Services   

   PO Box 878 

   Ephrata, WA 98823 

 

(b) Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that either party hereto brings an action or proceeding for a 

declaration of the rights of the parties under this Agreement, for injunctive relief, or for an 

alleged breach or default of, or any other action arising out of this Agreement or the transactions 

contemplated hereby the prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to an award of 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and any court costs incurred in such action or proceeding, including 

on appeal, in addition to any other damages or relief awarded, regardless of whether such action 

proceeds to final judgment. 

 



 

7 

(c) Entire Agreement and Amendments.  This Agreement, together with any Exhibits referred to 

herein constitute the final and complete expression between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any and all prior arrangements or understandings between the parties.  This Agreement can be 

amended only by a writing signed by Buyer and Seller. 

 

(d) Exhibits.  All exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

(e) Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in connection with each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

 

(f) Choice of Law.  This Agreement and each and every related document is to be governed by, 

and construed in accordance with, the laws of the state in which the Property is situated. 

 

(g) Successors.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions and covenants contained 

herein shall inure to and be binding upon the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  

However, Seller shall have no right to assign any of its rights, privileges, duties or obligations 

under this Agreement or to convey or transfer the Property prior to Closing, without the prior 

written consent of Buyer.  Buyer shall be entitled to assign Buyer’s interest under this 

Agreement. 

 

(h) Section Headings.  The headings of the Sections of this Agreement are inserted solely for 

convenience of reference, and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any 

term or provision hereof. 

 

(i) Waiver.  No claim of waiver, consent or acquiescence with respect to any provision of this 

Agreement shall be made against either party except on the basis of a written instrument 

executed by or on behalf of such party.  A receipt by Seller of any payment due hereunder, with 

knowledge of any breach of this Agreement, shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach.  The 

party for whose benefit a condition is herein inserted shall have the unilateral right to waive such 

condition. 

 

(j) Further Actions.  Buyer and Seller agree to execute such further documents, and take such 

further actions, as may reasonably be required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement, or 

any agreement or document relating hereto or entered into in connection herewith. 

 

(k) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, when 

combined, shall constitute one single binding agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this document as of the day and 

year first hereinabove written. 

 

SELLER:      GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

 

Dated:        By   

                                                                                                

       By __________________________________ 

        

       By __________________________________ 

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                

 

BUYER:      PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO 2 OF 

GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

 

Dated:        By  



 

9 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  

County of Grant 

 

 

        I hereby certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ________________________ 

and ___________________________________ signed this instrument, on oath stated that they 

are/were authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be their free and voluntary 

act for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

DATED:__________________ 

 

                                                                                                   ___________________________ 

                                                                                                                        Notary Public 

 

                                                                                                          Residing at__________________ 

 

                                                                                                          My appointment expires:_______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

County of ______________ 

 

        I hereby certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _________________________ 

and ____________________________ signed this instrument, on oath stated that they were 

authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to  be their free and voluntary act for uses 

and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

DATED:___________________ 

                                                                                                     

                                                                                      _____________________________________ 

                                                                                                                 Notary Public 

                                                                                      Residing at____________________________ 

 

                                                                                      My appointment expires:__________________ 

 

 

 

 





 

 
 
 
 
 

Motion was made by ______________ and seconded by ___________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO to execute Change Order No. 8 to Contract 130-08756 with North Sky Communications, 
LLC for Fiber Optic Design and Construction, increasing the not-to-exceed contract amount by 
$9,500,000.00 for a new contract total of $96,500,000.00 and resetting the delegated authority levels to 
the authority granted to the General Manager/CEO per Resolution No. 8609 for charges incurred as a 
result of Change Order No. 8. 
 

 
 
 
 
North Sky 



M E M O R A N D U M  02/15/2024 
 
 
TO:  Richard Wallen, General Manager/CEO 
 
VIA:  Jeff Grizzel, Chief Operating Officer 

Julie Pyper, Chief Administrative Officer 
  Aaron Kuntz, Senior Manager EPMO 
  Allen Chatriand, Manager EPMO 
  Travis Wiser, Project Services Supervisor 
 
FROM:  Jeremy Conner, Project Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8, Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services 

2019-2024 
 
Purpose:   
 
To request Commission approval of Change Order No. 8 to Contract 130-08756 in the amount of 
$9,500,000.00 for a new total contract Not to Exceed price of $96,500,000.00. This is intended to 
provide funding for the completion of the project, to continue with North Sky Communications, LLC 
(NSC) for Fiber Optic Design and Construction. 
   
Discussion:   
 
The original contract was awarded on December 11, 2018. NSC continues to design and build out fiber in 
areas of the County that are designated for connectivity. The District is managing the activities and 
expenses of NSC.   
 
Funding for this contract was originally set at $10,000,000.00 in 2019 with the intent to add additional 
funding via change order on an approximately annual basis. At the beginning of 2020 an additional 
$10,500,000.00 was added via Change Order 1. Change Order 2 was administrative - and did not change 
the terms or financial amounts. Also, in 2020 Change Order 3 was approved in the amount of 
$13,400,00.00. In 2021 Change Order 4 was approved in the amount of $18,400,000.00. Change Order 5 in 
2022 was approved in the amount of $18,400,000.00.  Also, in 2022 Change Order 6 was approved to 
extend the contract through 2024.  Change Order 7 in 2023 was approved in the amount of 
$16,300,000.00 
 
Justification:   
 
The District is committed to completing and maintaining a sustainable wholesale fiber optic network to 
all the people of Grant County per Strategic Plan Objective 7.  Since the expansion is a major project that 
has a definable end, the District uses contract labor and equipment to accomplish the task rather than 
increase and decrease staff levels. This is a six-year contract that helps maintain a stable contract 
workforce and reduce overall procurement costs.  



 
Financial Considerations:   
 
Summary of Total Contract Spend 

Items 2019 Invoices 2020 Invoices  2021 Invoices 2022 Invoices 2023 Invoices 
Completion Prior Builds ML5 & George $1,052,653.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Maintenance Support $78,760.33 $0.00 $53,218.11 $37,499.57 $3,892.26 
Work Orders $0.00 $169,783.52 $432,656.15 $403,319.25 $202,623.04 
Fiber Drops $1,723,739.81 $2,769,423.94 $3,864,712.83 $3,036,752.94 $3,388,565.20 
Fiber Buildout Project (40 Areas) $6,983,101.87 $13,893,867.34 $13,482,633.81 $13,107,581.91 $12,769,987.79 
Annual Totals without tax $9,838,255.51 $16,833,074.80 $17,833,220.90 $16,585,153.67 $16,365,068.29 

 
1. Per the NSC contract a 3% increase went into effect January 1, 2024 

 
2. NSC continues to fulfil the high demand for Customer Connection requests while still 

maintaining full efforts towards the construction of the Fiber Expansion. 
 

3. Field Engineering was completed in 2022 and Design was completed in 2023. 
 

 There is adequate budget to support this change order. 
 
Change Order History:  See included change order table.  

 
Legal Review:  See included email.   
 
Recommendation:  Commission approval of Change Order No. 8 to Contract 130-08756 in the amount 
of $9,500,000.00 with North Sky Communications, LLC for Fiber Optic Design and Construction. 



From: Jeremy Conner
To: Patrick Bishop
Subject: FW: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services | Commission Memo

Approval Request
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:13:32 PM

 
 
Jeremy Conner
Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 12:41 PM
To: Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>; Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper
<Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz <Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>;
Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 

I approve.
 
Jeff
 
From: Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 11:13 AM
To: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper
<Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz <Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>;
Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 

Yes, I approve.
 
Thank You,
 
Jeremy Conner

mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Pbishop@gcpud.org
mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org


Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:54 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 
Greetings All,
 
We need to request your approvals to move Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8 with North Sky
Communications to the next Commission Packet (4/11/2024 submission date).
Can each of you please respond with approval to this email as a sign off on the attached memo.
 
Link to C365 Dashboard for Change Order No. 8
 
 
Thank you,
Beau Schwab
Procurement Officer II
EMAIL      bschwab@gcpud.org  
ADDRESS     14352 Hwy 243 S Bldg. 6, Beverly, WA  99321
 

grantpud.org
 

mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgrantpud.contracts365.com%2Fdetails%3FentitySettingId%3DContractRecord%26Id%3D7578%26listUrl%3D%252Flists%252FcciContracts&data=05%7C02%7CPbishop%40gcpud.org%7C5c132ed8215b430842ee08dc4f6beb1d%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638472572117200416%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=d%2FapV8hgRm%2FmnxlMu77NeeruyXXzPs9Aq4MGFkc%2BGbA%3D&reserved=0
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org


From: Jeremy Conner
To: Patrick Bishop
Subject: FW: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services | Commission Memo

Approval Request
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:14:39 PM

 
 
Jeremy Conner
Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 19, 2024 11:09 AM
To: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 
I approve. Thank you and take care, Jules
 

Julie E. Pyper
Chief Administrative Officer
BUSINESS ADVANCEMENT OFFICE (FORMERLY ENTERPRISE PROJECT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT) 

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT  STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT  |  EMPLOYEE EXPERIENCE  APPRENTICESHIP AND
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT  ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT  LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  | 

ENTERPRISE PROJECT MANAGEMENT OFFICE  ENTERPRISE TECHNOLOGY  FACILITIES & PROJECT

SERVICES  POWER DELIVERY  POWER PRODUCTION  | OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE  ORGANIZATIONAL
CHANGE MANAGEMENT  INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS  CORRECTIVE ACTION PROGRAM  CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT

 
MOBILE      509-906-0665
EMAIL   jpyper@gcpud.org
 

mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Pbishop@gcpud.org
mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:jpyper@gcpud.org


 
grantpud.org
 
OUR VALUES    Safety | Innovation | Service | Teamwork | Respect | Integrity | Heritage
 

From: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:54 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 
Greetings All,
 
We need to request your approvals to move Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8 with North Sky
Communications to the next Commission Packet (4/11/2024 submission date).
Can each of you please respond with approval to this email as a sign off on the attached memo.
 
Link to C365 Dashboard for Change Order No. 8
 
 
Thank you,
Beau Schwab
Procurement Officer II
EMAIL      bschwab@gcpud.org  
ADDRESS     14352 Hwy 243 S Bldg. 6, Beverly, WA  99321
 

grantpud.org
 

mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgrantpud.contracts365.com%2Fdetails%3FentitySettingId%3DContractRecord%26Id%3D7578%26listUrl%3D%252Flists%252FcciContracts&data=05%7C02%7CPbishop%40gcpud.org%7Ca5e3ed22de0040cd8a6708dc4f6c123d%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638472572791009338%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xq8b9%2FxM8UuvO0I0waRng9Ce98VeB%2B8FOOZ7wnt6GNE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org


From: Jeremy Conner
To: Patrick Bishop
Subject: FW: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services | Commission Memo

Approval Request
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:14:59 PM

 
 
Jeremy Conner
Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Aaron Kuntz <Akuntz@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 19, 2024 11:12 AM
To: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper
<Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 

I approve it.
 
___________________________________________________________
Aaron Kuntz
Senior Manager Enterprise Project Management Office
Grant County PUD
509-306-9099

 
From: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:54 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 
Greetings All,
 

mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Pbishop@gcpud.org
mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org


We need to request your approvals to move Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8 with North Sky
Communications to the next Commission Packet (4/11/2024 submission date).
Can each of you please respond with approval to this email as a sign off on the attached memo.
 
Link to C365 Dashboard for Change Order No. 8
 
 
Thank you,
Beau Schwab
Procurement Officer II
EMAIL      bschwab@gcpud.org  
ADDRESS     14352 Hwy 243 S Bldg. 6, Beverly, WA  99321
 

grantpud.org
 

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgrantpud.contracts365.com%2Fdetails%3FentitySettingId%3DContractRecord%26Id%3D7578%26listUrl%3D%252Flists%252FcciContracts&data=05%7C02%7CPbishop%40gcpud.org%7Cf027ed38cbc9455c842608dc4f6c1f47%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638472572989570058%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7y9NqTJKZCgFItnATkIU7nmfDadcubqnqqwO1%2B3jpbo%3D&reserved=0
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org


From: Jeremy Conner
To: Patrick Bishop
Subject: FW: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services | Commission Memo

Approval Request
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:14:25 PM

 
 
Jeremy Conner
Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 1:48 PM
To: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper
<Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz <Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>; Jeremy
Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 

I approve
 
From: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:54 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request
 
Greetings All,
 
We need to request your approvals to move Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8 with North Sky
Communications to the next Commission Packet (4/11/2024 submission date).
Can each of you please respond with approval to this email as a sign off on the attached memo.
 
Link to C365 Dashboard for Change Order No. 8

mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Pbishop@gcpud.org
mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgrantpud.contracts365.com%2Fdetails%3FentitySettingId%3DContractRecord%26Id%3D7578%26listUrl%3D%252Flists%252FcciContracts&data=05%7C02%7CPbishop%40gcpud.org%7Ce6ef7d0c91e74469d2cb08dc4f6c03f8%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638472572643334346%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2B8ETzAv4YmnqRfKCy89qSDdWC58xDL0uSqhArOTU1Us%3D&reserved=0


 
 
Thank you,
Beau Schwab
Procurement Officer II
EMAIL      bschwab@gcpud.org  
ADDRESS     14352 Hwy 243 S Bldg. 6, Beverly, WA  99321
 

grantpud.org
 

mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org


From: Jeremy Conner
To: Patrick Bishop
Subject: FW: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services | Commission Memo

Approval Request
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:13:09 PM

 
 
Jeremy Conner
Fiber Project Manager
 
DESK    509.793.1551
EXT.      4183
CELL      509.398.2048
EMAIL   jconner@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 
From: Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:56 AM
To: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper
<Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz <Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Re: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request

 
Yes, I approve.
 
Travis Wiser
 

From: Beau Schwab <bschwab@gcpud.org>
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 10:53 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Julie Pyper <Jpyper@gcpud.org>; Aaron Kuntz
<Akuntz@gcpud.org>; Allen Chatriand <achatriand@gcpud.org>; Travis Wiser <Twiser@gcpud.org>;
Jeremy Conner <Jconner@gcpud.org>
Subject: Contract# 130-08756, Change Order 8 | Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services |
Commission Memo Approval Request

 
Greetings All,
 
We need to request your approvals to move Contract 130-08756 Change Order No. 8 with North Sky
Communications to the next Commission Packet (4/11/2024 submission date).

mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:Pbishop@gcpud.org
mailto:jconner@gcpud.org
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Jpyper@gcpud.org
mailto:Akuntz@gcpud.org
mailto:achatriand@gcpud.org
mailto:Twiser@gcpud.org
mailto:Jconner@gcpud.org


Can each of you please respond with approval to this email as a sign off on the attached memo.
 
Link to C365 Dashboard for Change Order No. 8
 
 
Thank you,
Beau Schwab
Procurement Officer II
EMAIL      bschwab@gcpud.org  
ADDRESS     14352 Hwy 243 S Bldg. 6, Beverly, WA  99321
 

grantpud.org
 

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgrantpud.contracts365.com%2Fdetails%3FentitySettingId%3DContractRecord%26Id%3D7578%26listUrl%3D%252Flists%252FcciContracts&data=05%7C02%7CPbishop%40gcpud.org%7Cbe32cca2088f494296f608dc4f6bdcd8%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638472571889416294%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Kr6rd0QSycQb9iw9UWU%2FKFjbKm%2BiglU9osjugA4Dl4E%3D&reserved=0
mailto:bschwab@gcpud.org


Contract Documents 130-08756 

CHANGE ORDER 
NO. 8 

 
Pursuant to Section GC-11, the following changes are hereby incorporated into this Contract: 
 
A. Description of Change:  Increase the Contract Price. 
 
B. Time of Completion:  The completion date shall remain December 31, 2024. 
  
C. Contract Price Adjustment:  As a result of this Change Order, the not to exceed Contract Price shall 

be increased by the sum of $9,500,000.00 plus applicable sales tax.  This Change Order shall not 
provide any basis for any other payments to or claims by the Contractor as a result of or arising out 
of the performance of the work described herein.  The new total revised maximum Contract Price is 
$96,500,000.00, including changes incorporated by this Change Order. 

 
D. Except as specifically provided herein, all other Contract terms and conditions shall remain 

unchanged. 
 
 
Public Utility District No. 2 
  of Grant County, Washington 

 North Sky Communications, LLC 

 

By: {{CP1-Signature}}  By: {{CP2-Signature}} 

Name: {{CP1-FullName}}  Name: {{CP2-FullName}} 

Title: {{CP1-Title}}  Title: {{CP2-Title}} 

Date: {{CP1-DateSigned}}  Date: {{CP2-DateSigned}} 
 
 
 



CO# Approved 
by

Executed 
Date

Revised 
Completion 

Date

Cost Change 
Amount

Authority Level 
Tracking

1 Comm 12/11/19 N/A $10,500,000.00 $10,500,000.00

2 Dept Mgr 06/03/30 N/A $0.00 $0.00

3 Comm 07/29/20 N/A $13,400,000.00 $13,400,000.00

4 Comm 05/03/21 N/A $18,400,000.00 $18,400,000.00

5 Comm 04/26/22 N/A $18,400,000.00 $18,400,000.00

6 Dept Mgr 12/15/22 12/31/24 $0.00 $0.00

7 Comm 06/14/23 N/A $16,300,000.00 $16,300,000.00

8 Comm N/A $9,500,000.00 $9,500,000.00

86,500,000.00

$52,300,000.00

Increase the not to exceed 
Contract Price. $70,700,000.00

Extend the Contract Completion 
Date and Revise Exhibit "B" Rate 
Schedule to add rates for work in 
year 2024.

$70,700,000.00

Jeremy ConnerProject Manager:

Contractor: North Sky Communications, 
LLC

Contract Title:
Contract No. 130-08756

Revised Contract 
AmountChange Description

Increase the not to exceed 
Contract Price. $20,500,000.00

Revise Exhibit "B" Rate Schedule 
to add one labor classification and 
three equipment classifications.

$20,500,000.00

Change Order Table

Fiber Optic Design and Construction Services 2019-2023

Original Contract completion:

Total CO Cost Change Amt

12/14/2018
$10,000,000.00

12/31/2023

$86,500,000.00

Award Date:
Original Contract Amount:

District Representative (If Different):

Increase the not to exceed 
Contract Price. $33,900,000.00

Increase the not to exceed 
Contract Price.

$87,000,000.00Increase the not to exceed 
Contract Price.

Total Change Order Cost Change Amount

Increase  the not to exceed 
Contract Price. $96,500,000.00



 

 
 
 
 
 

Motion was made by ______________ and seconded by ___________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO to execute Contract 270-12016 with Mercer International, Inc. for a total not-to-exceed 
contract amount of $1,078,345.03. 

 
 

 
 
 
Mercer International 



M E M O R A N D U M                                            03/18/2024 
 
TO:  Rich Wallen, General Manager/Chief Executive Officer 
 
VIA:  Jeff Grizzel, Chief Operating Officer 
  Rey Pulido, Director of Power Production 
  Dale Campbell, Senior Engineering Manager of Power Production 
  Jason Michelbook, Power Production Mechanical Engineering Manager 
 
FROM:  Joseph Key, Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Award of Contract 270-12016 (Purchase of 7 remaining OWS units) 
 
Purpose:  To request Commission approval of single-source Contract 270-12016 with Mercer 
International, Inc. for a total sum of $1,078,345.03. This Contract shall supply 7 of the remaining Oil  
Water Separator (OWS) tank units and accessories, each having a unit price of $154,049.29. These OWS  
units will be installed adjacent to Priest Rapids generating units P01-P03, P05-P06, & P09-P10. 
 
Discussion:  Each Oil Water Separator (OWS) system is designed to treat all turbine sump water before it 
is drained into the station sump. The primary sources of potential oil discharge in the turbine unit 
include—but are not limited to—the wicket gate servomotors, the turbine and generator guide 
bearings, and the thrust bearing. Since it is at the lowest point of the unit’s inner head cover, any oil 
contamination from these sources will inevitably drain into the turbine sump. 
 
The turbine sump is primarily designed to collect the constant flow of turbine shaft seal lubrication and 
cooling water. As such, it must be constantly pumped into the station sump. To prevent the pollution of 
the station sump—and by extension, the Columbia River—the OWS tank provided by Mercer 
International, Inc. filters out both minor and major oil contamination.  
 
There are a number of contributing factors that warrant this project: 
 

1. Environmental: Grant PUD is committed to protecting the Columbia River, its ecosystems, and 
the surrounding environment at large. In the event of an oil leak or spill, these OWS systems will 
serve as the first line of defense to prevent contamination from ever reaching the river.  
 

2. Regulatory: At the time of this writing, there is currently no pressure or guidance from FERC or 
other regulatory agencies to install OWS systems at the District’s hydroelectric facilities. 
However, implementing these industry-leading measures prepares the District for any future 
regulatory guidance. Outside of this, activist organizations such as Columbia Riverkeeper have 
and will continue to negotiate with the District to take additional steps towards protecting and 
enhancing the Columbia River.  

 
3. Labor: During each of the unit rehab outages for the Turbine Upgrade project, the OWS tank is 

installed and plumbed by the Voith labor crew. This is standby work that can be completed 
whenever crews have availability, so it does not negatively impact the critical path of the 
Turbine Upgrade project. A large benefit to this approach is that no secondary outages are 
needed, which would incur considerable costs due to lost generation capacity and the use of 
District labor crews.  



Oil Water Separator (OWS) systems have already been installed outside 3 of the rehabbed units at Priest 
Rapids (P08, P04, & P07). The plan to install OWS systems at each unit commenced after the start of the 
PR Turbine Upgrade, so no OWS tanks have yet been installed at P09 & P02. Secondary outages will 
need to be taken in the future to allow for District labor crews to complete the work on these 2 units 
retroactively.  
 
To date, the procurement strategy for the 3 OWS units was to use one single-source contract and two 
PO’s. Now that the units have been in service and the District has a good understanding of the required 
scope, it is logical to purchase the remaining units under one contract. 
 
In order for each OWS installation to fall within the respective outage window, every subsequent tank 
must be delivered no more than 15 months apart. The delivery schedule of Contract 270-12016 is 
summarized as follows: 

• P01 unit delivery shall not exceed *3 months of Contract execution or drawing approval.  
• Delivery of each subsequent unit will not exceed 12 months. 
• All 7 units must be delivered by December 31, 2030.  
• Following District issuance of Notice to Proceed (NTP), the Contractor may deliver units ahead of 

schedule—see “Delivery Estimate” column. 
 

OWS Tank Delivery Schedule 
Unit Delivery Deadline Delivery Estimate 
P01 *August 2024 July 2024 
P06 August 2025 November 2024 
P03 August 2026 May 2025 
P05 August 2027 November 2025 
P10 August 2028 May 2026 
P09 August 2029 November 2026 
P02 August 2030 May 2027 

*Note: For P01, an August 2024 deadline is 
based off an estimated submittal approval of 
May 2024. 

 
Justification:  Mercer International, Inc. was selected as the sole-source for this Contract. To determine 
the benefit to the District, the following criteria must be considered.  
 

1. Unit Standardization: The first 3 OWS tanks (P09, P04, and P07) were purchased from Mercer. 
For purposes of standardization, the equipment for the remaining 7 units should be the same as 
the existing units. Among other things, this allows for part interchangeability and consistent 
procedures for Operations & Maintenance (O&M). 
 

2. Design Features: After an investigation of over 13 other OWS manufacturers, it was determined 
that Mercer was the only company that provided OWS tanks with all of the required design 
features. These include a motorized oil skimmer (filters out minor contamination), a proprietary 
filtration design that is both effective and provides ease of maintenance, and an overflow 
chamber (protects against an uncontrolled oil release).  

 



3. Schedule: The immediate schedule concern is ensuring that the Contract will be approved in 
time so that the OWS tank for P01 can be delivered within the current outage window. The 
District has an existing relationship with Mercer International, which accelerates the 
procurement process. Pursuing another manufacturer(s) would result in considerable delays, 
and the District would not have the benefit of items 1 & 2 above. 

 
The converse decision must also be considered—what are the consequences if this Contract is not 
approved as proposed? The following must be considered: 

• The District would lose out on the chance to use the already available Voith labor crews. This 
would require secondary outages which results in lost generation and additional District labor 
costs.  

• The District would lose out on Mercer’s fixed price offer. This competitive deal is time-critical—
Mercer is able to keep costs to the District low because the Contract allows them to fabricate 
and delivery the units on an accelerated schedule, which allows them to keep their own costs 
low. Due to market conditions and past trends, it is expected that the OWS units will undergo 
considerable cost escalations in the future—see “Financial Considerations” for details.  
 

Financial Considerations:  The purchases included in this Contract are included in the 2024 budget and 
the forecast for 2024-2030. The Cost Center is EB1100 and the Initiative ID is IN209. The Project ID’s are 
103746, 103749 through 103752, and 103769 through 103770. 
 
To date, the purchases of OWS units were as follows: 

• P08: Single-Source Contract 270-09715 – Unit Price: $79,940.00 
• P04: Single-Source Purchase Order PO27903 – Unit Price: $98,500.00 
• P07: Single-Source Purchase Order PO30990 – Unit Price: $119,995.00 

 
The cost adjustments across the first 3 OWS tank purchases can be explained by changing market 
conditions, including labor and material indices. This represents a 23% increase in cost from the 1st to 
the 2nd unit, and a 22% increase from the 2nd to the 3rd unit. All 3 tanks were nearly identical in 
specification, with 5052 aluminum as the primary tank material. Following some investigations in 2024, 
it was discovered that the aluminum tanks were undergoing galvanic corrosion. This issue underwent 
investigation, resulting in proposed solutions to mitigate corrosion. These solutions include adding 
anodic protection (“sacrificial” magnesium anodes) and polymer coatings in high-corrosion areas.  
 
For the remaining 7 units, it was decided that the tank material would be upgraded from 5052 
aluminum to 304L stainless steel. This material has significantly higher corrosion resistance, which will 
increase the overall life of the OWS tank and reduce the number of maintenance cycles compared to the 
aluminum product. However, 304L stainless steel is marginally more expensive than 5052 aluminum, 
which contributes to the increased unit price of $154,049.29. If the same linear trend of the previous 3 
units were to continue, it would be expected that a 4th aluminum unit would cost around 23% more than 
the 3rd one. However, a new stainless steel unit only costs 28% more than the previous aluminum one, 
which indicates that the material upgrade only contributes to a 5% cost increase. This upgrade has a 
considerable return on investment, because the total cost to maintain, repair, and eventually replace 
aluminum tanks would far exceed this marginal initial cost increase.  
 
Due to the Contract’s structure, this fixed unit price of $154,049.29 will not be subject to additional cost 
escalations, estimated at increasing 23% from unit to unit. Again, if cost escalations continued linearly, 



the price for this component could total nearly $2.2-million for the remaining 7 units, which is over 
double the Contract fixed price of $1,078,345.03.  
 
The fixed price of the Contract incentives the Contractor to manufacture and deliver units on an 
accelerated schedule. The cost escalation was built into Mercer’s quote, so adjustment language for 
labor, materials, and other market indices was not included. As such, Mercer is carrying the risk of how 
the market will bear out. In order for the District to maintain this advantageous financial position, it is in 
the best interest of the District to approve the award of this Contract and its proposed delivery 
schedule, permitting the early fabrication and delivery of units as the Contractor has availability. 
Including all 7 remaining units on a single Contract ensures a fixed price for each unit, regardless of 
future market conditions.  
 
Contract Specifics: The unit cost includes the OWS tank along with a spare parts package provided by 
Mercer. Payment for each unit is “Net 30”—due within 30 days of when the invoice is received following 
delivery. Each OWS tank provided by Mercer is subject to a 1-year warranty. 
 
Recommendation:  Commission approval to award Contract 270-12016 to Mercer International, Inc. for 
a total sum of $1,078,345.03 

 
Legal Review:  See attached e-mail(s). 



From: Joseph Key
To: Rebecca Diaz
Subject: Fwd: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
Date: Thursday, March 21, 2024 2:32:49 PM

FYI

Get Outlook for Android

From: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 2:16:19 PM
To: Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>; Jason Michelbook
<jmichel@gcpud.org>; Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido <Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Joseph Boitano <Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Thanks Stuart – I appreciate the additional information. I spoke with Rey and Dale and I’m
comfortable with the memo as written.
 
Jeff
 
From: Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 9:54 AM
To: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>; Jason Michelbook
<jmichel@gcpud.org>; Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido <Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Joseph Boitano <Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Jeff, I also had a discussion with Joseph on the Sole Source since I haven’t been involved
with this contract for several years. The linked Authorization provides some additional
information in case you haven’t already seen it,
 
Thanks, Stuart
https://gcpud.sharepoint.com/sites/Contracts/cciContractDocuments/12016/93660/Sole
Source Contract Authorization Signed.pdf
 
From: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 9:30 AM
To: Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>; Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org>; Dale Campbell
<Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido <Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano <Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Joseph – I’m generally comfortable with the memo but have a question about the sole
source nature of the contract. I’ve texted Rey and Dale and am hoping to connect with them
sometime today for a quick discussion about that. As soon as we’re able to talk, I’ll get back
to you with my approval.
 

mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:rdiaz@gcpud.org
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2FAAb9ysg&data=05%7C02%7Crdiaz%40gcpud.org%7C941290bc78b842bece6f08dc49ee6bb4%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638466535686133944%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=G0seHdG5wiVjFvQkUrERqTIdDC%2BmKVfPrmfbJoh%2F%2Bss%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/b-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgcpud.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FContracts%2FcciContractDocuments%2F12016%2F93660%2FSole%2520Source%2520Contract%2520Authorization%2520Signed.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Crdiaz%40gcpud.org%7C941290bc78b842bece6f08dc49ee6bb4%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638466535686143924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=I9ox3jj1gOGyLx059TNTZ20fgPi0KtHZ1I646dw3HA0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/b-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgcpud.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FContracts%2FcciContractDocuments%2F12016%2F93660%2FSole%2520Source%2520Contract%2520Authorization%2520Signed.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Crdiaz%40gcpud.org%7C941290bc78b842bece6f08dc49ee6bb4%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638466535686143924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=I9ox3jj1gOGyLx059TNTZ20fgPi0KtHZ1I646dw3HA0%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:jmichel@gcpud.org
mailto:Dcampbe@gcpud.org
mailto:Rpulido@gcpud.org
mailto:Shammon@gcpud.org
mailto:Jboitan@gcpud.org


From: Joseph Key
To: Rebecca Diaz
Subject: Fwd: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
Date: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 4:53:10 PM

Please see responses from Dale, Jason, and Rey that serve as their signatures. Can I pass it on
to you to send to ELT?

Thanks!

Joseph 

Get Outlook for Android

From: Rey Pulido <Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 4:39:38 PM
To: Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org>; Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Joseph Key
<jkey@gcpud.org>
Cc: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano
<Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Thanks for the opportunity to review. I am comfortable with edit. Thank you Joseph.
 
Take Care,
 

Rey Pulido
Director of Power Production
OFFICE    509.764.0500
EXT.          3128
CELL        509-393-6900
EMAIL      rpulido@gcpud.org
 

grantpud.org
 

From: Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 4:33 PM
To: Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido
<Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano
<Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: Re: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Nice job Joesph. No further comments. Please use this email as my approval/signature. 

mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:rdiaz@gcpud.org
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2FAAb9ysg&data=05%7C02%7Crdiaz%40gcpud.org%7C910ae0c612ae4affa8f208dc4938e3d2%7C023cc3f109884757846f493f0d084a7d%7C0%7C0%7C638465755901209633%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=m2VbwpdJ7K8RHnMniBw0Wgrdf%2FuI2XfrlAJThXm%2ByxM%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rpulido@gcpud.org


 
Jason

From: Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 4:23:28 PM
To: Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>; Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido
<Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano
<Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Thanks Joseph for the edits. No additional edits from me. Please use this e-mail in lieu of my initials
on the memo. 
 
Dale
 
From: Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2:03 PM
To: Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org>; Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org>; Rey Pulido
<Rpulido@gcpud.org>
Cc: Jeff Grizzel <Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano
<Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: RE: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Edited some of the projected costs per review.
 
Thanks!
 
 
Joseph Key
Engineer
Mechanical Engineering & Asset Management
 
OFFICE    509.764.1453
EXT.          3339
EMAIL      jkey@gcpud.org
 

 
grantpud.org
 
 
 
From: Dale Campbell <Dcampbe@gcpud.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 19, 2024 3:58 PM
To: Joseph Key <jkey@gcpud.org>
Cc: Rey Pulido <Rpulido@gcpud.org>; Jason Michelbook <jmichel@gcpud.org>; Jeff Grizzel

mailto:Dcampbe@gcpud.org
mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:jmichel@gcpud.org
mailto:Rpulido@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Shammon@gcpud.org
mailto:Jboitan@gcpud.org
mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:jmichel@gcpud.org
mailto:Dcampbe@gcpud.org
mailto:Rpulido@gcpud.org
mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Shammon@gcpud.org
mailto:Jboitan@gcpud.org
mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:Dcampbe@gcpud.org
mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
mailto:Rpulido@gcpud.org
mailto:jmichel@gcpud.org


<Jgrizzel@gcpud.org>; Stuart Hammond <Shammon@gcpud.org>; Joseph Boitano
<Jboitan@gcpud.org>
Subject: Revised Memo for Contract 270-12016
 
Rey, Jason and I reviewed and revised the memo for your consideration.  Please use this email as our
initials on the memo.
 
We simplified the memo to include only the necessary information for the commission approval.
 
You are clear to send the memo through procurement for ELT review.
 
Regards,
 
 
Dale Campbell
Senior Engineering Manager of Power Production
 
CELL          509.430.5821
OFFICE     509.793.1597
EMAIL      dale.campbell@gcpud.org
 
 

 
grantpud.org
 

mailto:Jgrizzel@gcpud.org
mailto:Shammon@gcpud.org
mailto:Jboitan@gcpud.org
mailto:dale.campbell@gcpud.org


Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

1 
 

PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

This Purchase Contract (“Contract”), effective upon full execution, is by and between Public Utility 
District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington (“District”) and Mercer International, Inc. (“Contractor”); 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
That parties hereto for the considerations set forth in this Contract and the Exhibits hereto 

(collectively, the “Contract Documents”) agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SUPPLY   

The Contractor shall supply seven Priest Rapids Oil Water Separators and accessories (P01-P03, 
P05-P06, and P09-P10) (the “Unit(s)”) manufactured in accordance with Exhibit “C” Quotation 
#MI-23218-3 dated January 3, 2024 and these Contract Documents. 

2. DELIVERY/DELIVERY SCHEDULE   

The Contractor shall deliver the first Unit within three months of Contract execution or the 
District’s approval of Contractor’s general drawings submittal, whichever is later. Delivery of 
subsequent units will be by issue of Notice to Proceed (Exhibit “B”) by the District Representative. 
Delivery of each unit will not exceed 12 months from delivery of previous unit. All seven units will 
be delivered by December 31, 2030. Contractor may deliver any and all Unit(s) ahead of schedule.  

Delivery shall be F.O.B. Priest Rapid Dam. This shall mean that the Contractor will pay the cost of 
transportation to have the Units "free on board" to the Priest Rapids Dam located at 29086 Highway 
243 S, Mattawa, WA 99349.  It also shall mean that the title and risk of loss do not pass until the 
Units have been inspected and moved from the conveyance.  The Contractor shall deliver the Units 
on or before the dates specified in these Contract Documents; failure to do so may result in damage 
to the District.   

3. SHIPPING AND NOTIFICATION INSTRUCTIONS   

All Units shall be suitably packed to ensure against damage from weather or transportation and in 
accordance with the requirements of common carriers.  The delivery address and Contract number 
shall be clearly marked on the outside of all packaging.  Each shipment must be accompanied by a 
packing list, which shall reference the Contract number and include item descriptions, part 
numbers, and quantities.  Any bills of lading, shipping order or the like shall also contain the above 
listed information. 

Advance notification of shipment of the equipment/material is required.  Contractor shall notify the 
District Representative at (509) 764-1453, Ext. 3339 48 hours prior to delivery of shipment.  Failure 
by the Contractor to provide the advance notification specified herein may result in delays in 
unloading and receipt.  The costs of all such delays shall be charged to the Contractor's account. 

District receiving hours are Monday through Thursday, 6:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. and 12: 30 p.m. – 
3:30 p.m.  No deliveries will be received on District observed holidays or during any other times 
unless specific prior arrangements have been made with the District's Warehouse Foreman.  District 
observed holidays are as follows:  New Year's Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence 
Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.  If a holiday falls on 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

2 
 

Saturday, it will be observed on the previous Friday.  If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed 
on the following Monday. 

In the event of a cancellation of this Contract by the District for the Units to be provided, the District 
will reimburse the Contractor 25% of the balance due remaining on the Contract Price in settlement 
for the Contractor’s financial damages.  The Contractor shall retain title and ownership of any Units, 
materials, equipment, or work in progress associated with the Contract and not already paid for by 
the District. There shall be no other reimbursements or remedies by either Party in the event of a 
cancellation of this Contract.  

4. PAYMENT   

The District agrees to pay the Contractor a unit price of $154,049.29 for each of the Units to be 
provided for a total sum of $1,078,345.03, plus applicable Washington State Sales Tax in 
accordance with these Contract Document.  The Contractor may submit an invoice for payment 
following each delivery of a Unit, which conforms to the Contract Documents.  The invoice shall 
contain detailed information identifying the number of units actually furnished multiplied by the 
applicable unit price.  The invoice shall be submitted for District verification and 
approval.  Payment will be made to the Contractor within 30 days after District’s receipt of a 
properly completed invoice or receipt of conforming goods or services, whichever is later. 

Invoices shall include the Contract number (270-12016) and be addressed as follows: 

Public Utility District No. 2  
 of Grant County, Washington 
Attn:  Accounts Payable 
PO Box 878 
Ephrata, WA  98823 

 
Phone:  (509) 793-1450 
E-mail:  AccountsPayable@gcpud.org 

 
5. PAYMENTS WITHHELD 

The District may withhold the whole or part of any payment to such extent as may be reasonably 
necessary to protect itself from loss on account of: 

A. Defective or damaged work not remedied or warranties not met. 

B. Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating filing of claims against the Contractor. 

C. Failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for materials, 
labor, or equipment. 

D. A reasonable doubt that the Contract can be completed for the balance then unpaid. 

E. Damage to or loss of District-furnished materials or District property. 

The District shall notify the Contractor if any payment, or portion of any payment, is withheld for 
any of the reasons above, or for missing documentation or items incorrectly invoiced.  Notification 
shall be made in accordance with Section 16. 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

3 
 

6. INDEMNITY 

A. Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and its representatives 
(which shall be deemed to include the District's directors, officers, employees and agents) 
from and against any and all liabilities, claims, losses, damages or expenses of any type or 
kind, including reasonable legal fees, and expert witness fees, which may be incurred or 
sustained by the District or its representatives by reason of any act, omission, misconduct, 
negligence, or default on the part of the Contractor or arising in connection with the 
supplies, material or equipment to be furnished pursuant to these Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor's indemnification obligation shall not apply to liability for damages arising out 
of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by the negligence of the District 
or its agents or employees and not attributable to any act or omission on the part of the 
Contractor.  In the event of damages to person or property caused by or resulting from the 
concurrent negligence of District or its agents or employees and the Contractor or its agents 
or employees, the Contractor's indemnity obligation shall apply only to the extent of the 
Contractor's (including that of its agents and employees) negligence. 

C. Contractor acknowledges that by entering into a contract with the District, he or she has 
mutually negotiated the above indemnity provisions with the District for each Unit.  
Contractor's indemnity and defense obligations as to each Unit shall survive 365 days after 
each of the Units are delivered and accepted by the District. 

7. LAWS, REGULATIONS, PERMITS   

The Contractor represents that it is familiar with, and shall be governed by and comply with, all 
federal, state and local statutes, laws, ordinances, and regulations including amendments and 
changes as they occur.  The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall be responsible for insuring 
that its employees fully comply with the District’s Code of Ethics, a copy of which is available at 
the District’s offices. 

All written instruments, agreements, specifications and other writing of whatsoever nature which 
relate to or are a part of this Contract shall be construed, for all purposes, solely and exclusively in 
accordance and pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  The rights and obligations of the 
District and Contractor shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington.  Venue of any 
action filed to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract shall be exclusively in the Superior 
Court, County of Grant, State of Washington or the Federal District Court for the Eastern District 
of Washington at the District’s sole option.  In the event of litigation to enforce the provisions of 
this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable legal fees in addition to any other 
relief allowed. 

8. DAMAGES   

Any claims arising under the Contract by the Contractor shall be made in writing to the District 
Representative no later than ten days after the beginning of the event or occurrence giving rise to 
the claim.  Failure to make written claim prior to the time specified in the Contract Documents shall 
constitute waiver of any such claim. 

 

 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

4 
 

9. WARRANTY   

The Contractor agrees that all materials and equipment furnished pursuant to the Contract shall be 
free from all inherent defects in design, workmanship and material. The Parties agree that the 
manufacturer’s standard warranty shall become a part of the Contract and is found in Exhibit “D”.   
The Contractor shall immediately upon receiving notice from the District repair or replace any 
materials or equipment which, under normal and proper use, prove defective within one year from 
the date of delivery to the District.  The warranty provided herein is in addition to and not in lieu 
of manufacturer’s standard warranty attached as Exhibit “D”. 

If at any time prior to the expiration of the one-year warranty period, Contractor or District 
discovers any defect in such design, materials or workmanship in the Units, the Contractor shall, 
upon written notice from the District given within a reasonable time after discovery, correct such 
defects to the satisfaction of the District by redesigning, repairing or replacing the defective work 
at a time acceptable to District.    

Contractor shall not be liable to the District either in contract or in tort (including negligence or 
strict liability) for any consequential damages, including but not limited to the District's loss of 
profits, its loss of revenue or its cost or replacement power. 

10. CHANGES IN WORK   

Without invalidating the Contract, the District may make changes by altering, adding or deducting 
from the work, and/or make changes in the drawings and specifications requiring changes in the 
work and/or materials and equipment to be furnished under this Contract; provided such additions, 
deductions or changes are within the general scope of the Contract.  Except as provided herein, no 
official, employee, agent or representative of the District is authorized to approve any change in 
this Contract and it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor before proceeding with any change, 
to satisfy itself that the execution of the written Change Order has been properly authorized on 
behalf of the District.  The District’s management has limited authority to approve Change Orders.  
The current level and limitations of such authority are set forth in District Resolution No. 8609 
which may be amended from time to time.  Otherwise, only the District’s Board of Commissioners 
may approve changes to this contract. 

Charges or credits for the work covered by the approved changes shall be determined by one or 
more, or a combination of the following methods, at the District's option: 

A. Unit prices specified.  

B. An agreed lump sum.  When requested, Contractor shall provide a detailed proposal for 
evaluation by the District, including, as applicable: 

1. Detailed proposed labor categories, hours, and rates. 

2. Specific materials and quantities. 

3. Equipment and equipment hours. 

4. Administrative cost and profit. 

C. The actual cost related to the change of: 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

5 
 

1. Labor, including foreman, only for employees who will work directly on the work 
covered by the Change Order. 

2. Materials entering permanently into the work. 

3. The ownership or rental cost of plant and equipment during the time of use on the 
project. 

4. Power and consumable supplies for the operation of power equipment. 

5. Insurance. 

6. Social Security and old age and unemployment contributions. 

7. To the sum of Items 1, 2, 4, 5, and 6 inclusive, there shall be added a fixed fee of 
40%.  The fee shall be compensation to cover the cost of supervision, overhead, 
bond, profit and any other general expenses. 

When a change is ordered by the District, as provided herein, a Change Order shall be executed by 
the District and the Contractor before any Change Order work is performed.  The District shall not 
be liable for any payment to Contractor, or claims arising therefrom, for Change Order work which 
is not first authorized in writing as set forth in this section.  All terms and conditions contained in 
the Contract Documents shall be applicable to Change Order work.  Change Orders shall be issued 
on the form attached as Exhibit “A” and shall specify any change in time required for completion 
of the work caused by the Change Order and, to the extent applicable, the amount of any increase 
or decrease in the Contract Price. The Contractor shall not be responsible for any delays or damages 
resulting from the District’s delay in reviewing and approving Change Orders. 

If Contractor believes that any requirement, direction, instruction, interpretation, determination, or 
decision of the District described in a Change Order entitles Contractor to an adjustment in the 
Contract Price or time for performance and the Contractor and District cannot agree on the 
appropriate adjustment(s), then Contractor shall submit a claim as provided in Section 8 of this 
Contract.  Notwithstanding the submission of any such claim, Contractor shall proceed without 
delay to perform the work described in the Change Order.  

11. TAXES 

A. Except for the Washington State retail sales and use taxes as may be levied upon the 
Contract, pursuant to RCW Chapters 82.08 and 89.12, the Contract Price includes and the 
Contractor shall have the full exclusive liability for the payment of all taxes, levies, duties 
and assessments of every nature due and payable in connection with this Contract or its 
employees and Subcontractors performing work related to this Contract. 

B. Washington State retail sales tax and use taxes levied upon this Contract pursuant to RCW 
Chapters 82.08 and 82.12 are excluded from the rates and if applicable will be reimbursed 
as follows: 

1. If the Contractor has, or is required to have a valid Washington State sales tax 
identification number, the identification number shall be furnished to the District 
upon request.  The Contractor shall make payment of any Washington State retail 
sales and use taxes due and Contractor shall be reimbursed by the District for the 
same.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for any interest or penalties arising 
from late or untimely payment of said taxes. 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

6 
 

2. If the Contractor is not required to have a valid Washington State sales tax 
identification number, it shall notify the District of the same.  In such event, the 
District, after receiving proper invoices from Contractor, shall make payment of 
said Washington State retail sales and use taxes levied upon this Contract to the 
Washington State Department of Revenue. 

12. NON-WAIVER   

No waiver of any provision of this Contract, or any rights or obligations of either party under this 
Contract, shall be effective, except pursuant to a written instrument signed by the party or parties 
waiving compliance, and any such waiver shall be effective only in the specific instance and for 
the specific purpose stated in such writing.  The failure of either party to require the performance 
of any term of this Contract or the waiver of either party of any breach under this Contract shall not 
operate or be construed as a waiver of any other provision hereof, nor shall it be construed as a 
waiver of any subsequent breach by the other party hereto. 

13. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT   

The District is subject to the disclosure obligations of the Washington Public Records Act of RCW 
42.56.  The Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that its quote(s) and any information 
Contractor submits with its quote(s) is subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Public Records 
Act or other applicable law and the District may disclose Contractor’s proposal and/or 
accompanying information at its sole discretion in accordance with its obligations under applicable 
law. 

14. ASSIGNMENT   

The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or any interest in or part thereof, or any monies due 
or to become due hereunder, without the prior written approval of the District.  Any costs to the 
District associated with the assignment may be deducted from amounts due to the Contractor. 

15. INSPECTION   

On reasonable notice to the Contractor, the District Representative, their assistants, and inspectors 
shall have access to all places where materials are being manufactured or prepared for use under 
these Contract Documents and they shall have full access to facilities for unrestricted inspection 
during working hours of such materials, equipment and work.  The District Representative, their 
assistants, and inspectors shall be authorized to record their observations in any manner reasonable, 
including but not limited to recording by photographs. 

The District Representative shall be kept informed of the production schedules so that inspections 
may be adequately performed.  The Contractor shall give timely notice of any changes to the 
production schedule requiring inspection.  Examination of questioned work may be ordered by the 
District Representative, and, if so ordered, the work must be uncovered or made accessible by the 
Contractor.  If such work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the District 
shall pay the costs of examination and restoration.  If such work is found not to be in accordance 
with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall bear such cost and expedite such necessary 
corrections. 

 

 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

7 
 

16. NOTICES 

Any notice or other communication under this Contract given by either party shall be sent via email 
to the email address listed below, or mailed, properly addressed and stamped with the required 
postage, to the intended recipient at the address and to the attention of the person specified below 
and shall be deemed served when received and not mailed.  Either party may from time to time 
change such address by giving the other party notice of such change. 

District      Contractor 
Joseph Key            David Goding 
Public Utility District No. 2   Mercer International, Inc. 

      of Grant County, Washington   113 Bar Woods Drive 
PO Box 878     PO Box 65 
14352 Highway 243 S Building 6  Deer Isle, Maine 04627   
Beverly, WA  99321    (973) 543-9000 
(509) 750-6031     dgoding@mercerows.com 
jkey@gcpud.org 

   
For purposes of technical communications (including those provided in Sections 5 and 8) and work 
coordination only, the District designates Joseph Key as its representative.  Said individual shall 
have no authority to authorize any activity which will result in any change in the amount payable 
to Contractor.  Such changes, if any, must be by written Change Order issued in accordance with 
Section 10 to be valid and binding on the District. 

17. ACTIVITIES ON DISTRICT PREMISES  

If Contractor or any of its Subcontractors or suppliers of any tier performs any activities on premises 
owned, leased, possessed or controlled by the District, Contractor shall:  

A. Take all precautions which are necessary to prevent injury to persons and damage to any 
property or the environment in connection with such activities;  

B. Release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and its officers, agents, and 
employees from all claims, losses, harm, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including 
but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees that may arise in connection with such 
activities; and  

C. Maintain in effect at all times during performance of such activities Commercial General 
Liability insurance (including blanket contractual) with limits not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence; and automobile liability for all vehicles used under the contract for bodily 
injury, and property damage with limits not less than $1,000,000 per accident.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor assumes potential liability for acts 
brought by Contractor's employees, Subcontractors or suppliers of any tier. 

D. Upon request, the Contractor shall promptly furnish to District such certificates of 
insurance and other evidence of the insurance required under this section naming the 
District as Additional Insured.  The District shall have the right but not the obligation of 
prohibiting the Contractor or its Subcontractors from entering District premises until such 
certificates have been provided as evidence of compliance with these requirements. 

 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

8 
 

18. PHYSICAL SECURITY 

If any performance under this Contract is to be conducted on District facilities or worksites, it shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that its employees and those of its Subcontractors 
are informed of and abide by the District’s Security Policies as if fully set out herein a copy of 
which shall be provided to the Contractor by the District Representative at the preconstruction 
meeting or prior to beginning work.  Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor and its employees 
shall be required to: 

A. Keep all external gates and doors locked at all times and interior doors as directed. 

B. Visibly display ID badges on their person at all times.  

C. Stay out of unauthorized areas or in authorized areas outside of authorized work hours, 
without express authorization from the District. 

D. Provide proper notification to the appropriate parties, and sign in and out upon entry and 
exit to secured locations.  If unsure of who to notify, Contractor shall contact the District 
Representative. 

E. Immediately notify the District if any of Contractor’s employees no longer need access or 
have left the Contractor’s employment. 

F. Immediately report any lost or missing access device to the District Representative. A 
minimum charge will be assessed the Contractor in the amount of $50.00 per badge and 
the fee for lost or non-returned keys may include the cost to re-key the plant facilities.  The 
Contractor is strictly prohibited from making copies of keys. 

G. Not permit ‘tailgating’ through any controlled access point (i.e. person(s), authorized or 
unauthorized, following an authorized person through an entry point without individual use 
of their issued ID badge or key). 

H. Return all District property, including but not limited to keys and badges, to the District 
Representative when an individual’s access to the facility is no longer needed.  

I. Guest Wireless: The District provides Guest Wireless Internet access to contractors and 
vendors that need to conduct business in support of the District from personally owned 
mobile devices such as laptops and smart phones. Contractor personnel are responsible for 
exercising good judgment regarding appropriate use of information, electronic devices, and 
network resources. 

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall comply with the safety requirements of these Contract 
Documents and all District policies pertaining to COVID-19 located at 
https://www.grantpud.org/for-contractors. 

The District reserves the right to conduct or to require contractor to conduct criminal background 
checks on its employee(s) before granting such individuals access to restricted areas of District 
facilities or protected information.  Criminal background checks may be conducted in such depth 
as the District reasonably determines to be necessary or appropriate for the type of access to be 
granted.  The cost of such background checks shall be borne by the Contractor.  

https://www.grantpud.org/for-contractors


Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

9 
 

Contractor’s personnel accepting clearances, superintendents, and foreman will be required to 
attend a safe clearance procedure training class and Contractor’s orientation class prior to starting 
field work.  Classes may last up to two hours. 

19. SECURITY, SAFETY AWARENESS TRAINING, DAM SAFETY AWARENESS TRAINING, 
AND TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION ACCESS TRAINING 

Prior to receiving access to any District facilities, all Contractors, Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and Subcontractor’s employees, material suppliers and material supplier’s 
employees, or any person who will be engaged in the work under this Contract that requires access 
to District facilities, shall be required to take and pass the District’s Security and Safety Awareness 
training before being issued a security access badge to access District facilities.  Under no 
circumstances will the failure of any Contractor or Subcontractor employee to pass the required 
training, be grounds for any claim for delay or additional compensation. 

The Safety and Security Awareness training is available online and is a 20-30 minute training. The 
training is located at:  https://www.grantpud.org/for-contractors.  All contractors and their 
employees are required to successfully complete Safety and Security Awareness training before 
coming onsite.  The Security and Safety certificates should be emailed directly to 
SecurityTrainingCerts@gcpud.org.  
 
District Representative  shall ensure that Contractor’s employees, subcontractor’s and 
subcontractor’s employees have completed and submitted the certificate of completion for the 
training in a timely manner to avoid any delay in execution of the work.  All such certificates shall 
be submitted before any security access badges will be issued. 
 
If applicable, Dam Safety Awareness Training is required for Contractors who are performing work 
in and around Priest Rapids and Wanapum Dams and are badged.  The training is available online 
only and is a 20-30 minute training.  Contractor shall ensure that its employees, Subcontractors and 
Subcontractor’s employees have completed, passed and printed the certificate of completion for the 
training in a timely manner to avoid any delay in execution of the work.  All such certificates shall 
be submitted to the District Representative before any security access badges will be issued. 

If applicable, Transmission and Distribution Access Training is required for Contractors, or their 
Subcontractors, who may hold a clearance or hotline hold order as part of performance of work 
under this Contract.  The training is available online only and is a 20-30 minute training.  Contractor 
shall ensure that its employees, Subcontractors and Subcontractor’s employees have completed, 
passed and printed the certificate of completion for the training in a timely manner to avoid any 
delay in execution of the work.  All such certificates shall be submitted to the District 
Representative before any security access badges will be issued. 

If you are uncertain which of the above courses you or your employees must complete, please 
contact your District Representative. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract under their several seals 

the day and year first above written; the name and corporate seal of each corporate party hereto being hereto 
affixed and these presents being duly executed in two counterparts by the proper officers of each thereunto 
duly authorized, each of which counterparts shall without proof or accounting for the other counterparts, be 
deemed an original Contract. 
 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

10 
 

 
Public Utility District No. 2  Mercer International, Inc. 
  of Grant County, Washington 

By: {{CP1-Signature}}  By: {{CP2-Signature}} 

Name: {{CP1-FullName}}  Name: {{CP2-FullName}} 

Title: {{CP1-Title}}  Title: {{CP2-Title}} 

Date: {{CP1-DateSigned}}  Date: {{CP2-DateSigned}} 
  



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

11 
 

Sample Only 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CHANGE ORDER 

NO. __ 
 
Pursuant to Section 10, the following changes are hereby incorporated into this Contract: 
 
A. Description of Change: 
 
 
 
 
B. Time of Completion:  The revised completion date shall be _____________. 
 OR 
 The completion date shall remain ___________. 
 
C. Contract Price Adjustment:  As a result of this Change Order, the not to exceed Contract Price shall 

remain unchanged (be increased/decreased by the sum of $_________ plus applicable sales tax).  
This Change Order shall not provide any basis for any other payments to or claims by the Contractor 
as a result of or arising out of the performance of the work described herein.  The new total revised 
maximum Contract Price is $_________, including changes incorporated by this Change Order.   

 
D. Except as specifically provided herein, all other Contract terms and conditions shall remain 

unchanged. 
 
 
Public Utility District No. 2    Mercer International, Inc. 
  of Grant County, Washington   
 
 
Accepted By:  ________________________    Accepted By:  _________________________  
     
Name of Authorized Signature    Name of Authorized Signature 
Title        Title 
 
Date:  ______________________________    Date:  ________________________________    
 
  



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

12 
 

EXHIBIT “B” - NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

 
 
To:   Mercer International, Inc.  
        4 Mountainside Road 
  Mendham, NJ 7945 
  
 
 
Project Name:   
 
Date of Award:   
 

You are hereby notified to commence delivery on unit ____  of the above referenced project, 
delivery shall be made on or before _______________________, 20________.  All required work, 
including labor and specified materials, shall be in full compliance with the terms and conditions contained 
in the Small Works Contract Documents referenced above, which are herein incorporated by this reference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 Public Utility District No. 2 
   of Grant County, Washington 

By:   By: {{CP1-Signature}} 

Name:   Name: {{CP1-FullName}} 

Title:   Title: {{CP1-Title}} 

Date:   Date: {{CP1-DateSigned}} 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

13 
 

EXHIBIT “C” –  QUOTATION MI-23218-3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



* * * 113 Bar Woods Drive, PO Box 65, Deer Isle, Maine, 04627, USA Tel: +518-421-4456 *** 
 
 

Provide seven (7) identical Mercer International, Inc. Compliance Master oil/water/solids separators with 
Multi-Pack coalescers, Model MI-75-S4 rated at 75 gpm maximum each.  Units are rectangular, gravity-
displacement, #304L stainless steel separator tanks with nominal dimensions of 8’-5” length x 3’-8” 
width x 6’-4” height, designed for nominal 60-micron removal of .88 specific gravity oils at 60F.The 
following standard features shall be included for each unit: 

 
 Multi-Pack coalescer featuring removable and adjustable coalescer plates, offering field 

adjustment capabilities for attaining the highest possible efficiency with the lowest practical 
maintenance requirements.  Down to 5/16” plate gap capability.  Factory equipped with 5/8” right 
angle plate gap.  Coalescer frame is 304L stainless steel and the coalescer plates are our 
proprietary composite material. 

 Inlet chamber for initial flow equalization. 
 Removable two-stage inlet distribution baffle. 
 Coarse oil/solids separating zone. 
 Adjustable gravity product skimmer pipe. 
 Four (4) by-pass prevention baffles. 
 Large inverted “V” solids/sludge holding chamber, 55° incline angle. 
 Four (4) 2” sludge/solids outlet fittings & drain fittings with ball valves, quick connects and caps. 
 Removable outlet distribution baffle. 
 Adjustable outlet weir & baffle system. 
 Level indicator for high liquid level and high oil level in separator, 
 Integral oil holding compartment with high level control. 
 Continuous mechanical skimmer with thermal protection.  
 NEMA 12 enclosure as specified. 
 Pre-wiring of all instrumentation to unit-mounted panel. 
 Removable multi-piece top covers with handles. 

 

(Continued on page 2) 

 

 
 

 

 
 

QUOTATION #MI-23218-3 
 

January 3, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Joseph Key 
Grant County PUD 
14353 Highway 243 South, Building 6 
Beverly, WA 99321 
(509)754-5088 x3339 
jkey@gcpud.org 
 
    Compliance Master™ 
Oil/Water/Solids Separator 
 
Multi-Pack™ Field Adjustable 
High-Performance Coalescer 
 
         Priest Rapids Dam 

 

mailto:jkey@gcpud.org
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=142c50ed59&view=fimg&th=14b3607a2a20c61d&attid=0.1.1&disp=inline&safe=1&attbid=ANGjdJ-W1jX9UzviwY_daBqPvmRkkw9Vb-Id63T9Xo9jkzHuTLpZl8C-ZQss1OvviEhGjdE-VhlCUQCB0XkITNqDSKx248ep186M8LSrCTwiZt9HdDtKIhMEQuGyb8g&ats=1422542160031&rm=14b3607a2a20c61d&zw&sz=w1896-h835
jkey
Highlight

jkey
Rectangle

jkey
Text Box
Tech Spec



* * * 113 Bar Woods Drive, PO Box 65, Deer Isle, Maine, 04627, USA Tel: +518-421-4456 *** 
 
 

 

Page 2 of 2                                       Quotation #MI-23218-3 
 
 
Total Price Delivered……………………………………………………….$999,115.00 USD 
 
 
 Optional  Price (USD) 

□ Upgrade tank shell and Coalescer frame from 304L to 316L $94,045.00 for all seven 

□ Spare Multi-Pack™ coalescer $30,745.00 ea. Multi-Pack 

□ Replacement coalescer plate set, 5/8” gap. $11,785.00 per each OWS 

□ Spare parts package (Oil scrapers kit, skimmer tube, 2 floats, 2 oil 
skim boots, 4 coalescer flow-stops)  

$1,750.00 per each OWS 

□ 24 anode mounting clips, tabs and or/or studs (design supplied by 
Mercer and approved by client), for future magnesium anodes.   

$9,280.00 for all seven 

□ “Bath Tub Ring” epoxy coating on interior side main weldment, 
nominal ring height shall be 6-7” (vertical) along waterline, in OWS 
compartment & clearwell. 

$27,950.00 for all seven 

□ Passivate the complete interior tank, all welds and interior walls $29,750.00 for all seven 

 
Payment Terms: PO to be broken into seven identical line items.  Each line item shipped can be billed 
independent of the other line items, once shipped, net 30 after delivery.  

Delivery:  FOB Jobsite. Each new unit may require up to 16-20 weeks to fabricate (shop volume 
dependent) after receipt of approved general arrangements drawings.  Mercer will supply submittals for 
approval at placement of PO and the approved submittal will cover all units. As of our backlog at this 
time, the first unit will be delivered within 3 months of the PO being issued, assuming Order is issued this 
month. 

Thank you for this opportunity to supply this quotation, we’d be happy to answer any questions that you 
may have regarding this quotation for your specific application. 

Very truly yours, 

 

Andre Ellman 
Director of Business Development 

jkey
Text Box
Joseph Key notes:-Total with options (7x units): $1,078,345.00-Per unit cost: $154,049.29

jkey
Highlight

jkey
Highlight

jkey
Highlight

jkey
Highlight

jkey
Highlight



Contract Documents 270-12016 
 

14 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
EXAMPLE MERCER’S STANDARD EQUIPMENT WARRANTY 

 
 

 


	2024-04-09 Commission Meeting Agenda
	CONSENT Agenda page
	2024-03-26 Draft Commission Meeting Minutes
	2024-04-01 Draft SPECIAL MTG Comm Minutes
	REGULAR Agenda page
	Resolution 9048 Revised Salary Plan
	Resolution 9048 Revised Salary Plan_Supp Docs
	Motion 3475 Purchase and Sale Agreement
	Motion 3475 Purchase and Sale Agreement_Supp Docs
	Motion xxxx CO 130-08756 North Sky
	Motion xxxx CO 130-08756 North Sky_Supp Docs
	Motion xxxx Contract 270-12016 Mercer International
	Motion xxxx Contract 270-12016 Mercer International_Supp Docs



